
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

NOVEMBER 21, 2011 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
November 21, 2011 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor AC Phipps – Evanswood Church of God 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 1 

a) Troy School District Students Present “Say No to Drugs” Pledge Forms to 
Troy City Council .................................................................................................. 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 1 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

H-1  Adoption of City Council Rules of Procedure Postponed from the November 14, 
2011 Regular City Council Meeting 2 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: City Council Appointments – Employee 
Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and 
Trust 2 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: City Council Nominations – Southeastern 
Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 3 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 4 

I-4 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Police Department Promotional Testing 
Services 4 

I-5 2012 City Council Meeting Schedule 4 

I-6 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 
Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and 
Established: Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. – 2350 Meijer 5 

I-7 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 
Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and 
Established: EcoMotors, International – 1055 W. Square Lake 6 

I-8 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 
Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and 
Established: The ProMetal RCT, LLC – 2341 Alger 7 

I-9 Reconsideration and Substitution of Resolution Approving Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc. – 1972 Meijer 8 



 

 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 10 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 10 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 10 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 10 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 10 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 11 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal 
Services – Municipal Parking Lots and Local Roads .......................................... 11 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal 
Services – Home Chore Program and Public Sidewalks .................................... 11 

J-5 Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 
Funds 11 

J-6 May, as Personal Representative of Jesus Gillard v Bloomfield Township,        
Troy, et. al 12 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 12 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 13 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

L-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 13 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 13 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 13 



 

 

N. REPORTS 13 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes-Final-October 10, 2011 ............................. 13 
b) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-October 18, 2011 .............................................. 13 
c) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-October 18, 2011 .............................................. 13 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes-Draft-November 14, 2011 ......................... 13 

N-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan Actuarial Valuation of Other 
Postemployment Benefits - December 31, 2010 ................................................ 13 

b) City of Troy Employees Retirement System Forty-Seventh Annual Actuarial 
Valuation – December 31, 2010 ......................................................................... 13 

c) Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2011 ............................................. 13 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter of Appreciation from Vandan Kumar Manni to Lieutenant Riesterer – 
Fire Department ................................................................................................. 13 

b) Letter of Appreciation from Matt Creech to Steven Vandette – City Engineer .... 13 
c) Letter of Appreciation from JoAnne Carlson – American Business Women’s 

Association to Cathy Russ – Library Director ..................................................... 13 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 13 

N-5  University of Michigan-Dearborn’s iLabs eCities Research Recognizes Troy for Its 
Positive Entrepreneurial Climate 13 

N-6  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company Case 
No. U-16892 13 

O. STUDY ITEMS 13 

O-1  Update and Status of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 13 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 14 

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 14 



 

 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 14 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 14 

Monday, November 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 14 
Monday, December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 14 
Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 14 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 14 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor AC Phipps – Evanswood Church of God 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Janice Daniels 

Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of November 21, 2011 due to                      
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
a) Troy School District Students Present “Say No to Drugs” Pledge Forms to Troy 

City Council 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  Adoption of City Council Rules of Procedure Postponed from the November 14, 
2011 Regular City Council Meeting 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby (ADOPTS or AMENDS) the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council of the City of Troy as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: City Council Appointments – Employee 

Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust 
 
b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards as indicated: 
 
 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits 
Plan and Trust 
Appointed by Council - City Council Representative 
  
Wade Fleming  City Council Representative Unexpired Term 04/15/2012 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: City Council Nominations – Southeastern 

Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year Term;  
(1-Troy Daze Committee) - 1-Year Term; (1-Adv. Comm. For Sr. Citizens) - 1-Year Term 
 

Student Representative Term Expires 7/31/2012 
 

 

 
Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 
Appointed by Council  (1-Delgate & 1-Alternate) Appointment Every Odd Year Election   
  

Delegate Term Expires 11/11/2013 
  

Alternate Term Expires 11/11/2013 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Police Department Promotional Testing 

Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. has been providing testing and hiring services to the City’s Police 
Department for 20 years; and has provided this service to several other surrounding 
municipalities; and 
 
WHEREAS, EMPCO, Inc. meets departmental needs and complies with Act 78 Commission 
requirements, including the requirement to be fair and impartial. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures for this professional service are 
hereby WAIVED, since the public interest is best served by contracting with EMPCO, Inc.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the attached contract, authorizing EMPCO, Inc. to provide 
police lieutenant and police sergeant promotional testing is APPROVED, and a copy will be 
ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That upon the final action of the City of Troy Civil Service 
Commission requesting the certification of eligible police sergeant and lieutenant candidates, 
the City Manager and Human Resources Director are hereby AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE this 
contract on behalf of the City.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 2012 City Council Meeting Schedule 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Regular Meetings in 2012 according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 pm: 
 

Monday, January 9 & 23 
Monday, February 6 & 20   
Monday, March 5 & 19 
Monday, April 2 & 16 
Monday, May 7 & 14 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 13 & 27 
Monday, September 10 & 24 
Monday, October 8 & 22 
Monday, November 12 & 26 
Monday, December 3 & 17 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Special Study Sessions 
for the purpose of budget discussions in 2012 according to the following schedule at 7:30 pm 
 

Monday, April 23  
Monday, April 30 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That troy City Council MAY SCHEDULE other Special Meetings 
as needed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 

Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and 
Established: Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. – 2350 Meijer 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 22, 2008,  established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known 
as 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI. 48084,  Parcel #; 88-20-32-200-018, in the name of Faurecia 
Automotive Seating, inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Per the Letter of Agreement, between Faurecia Automotive Seating, inc. and the 
City of Troy, and per Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended, Faurecia Automotive Seating, inc. 
was allowed until December 31, 2010 to purchase and install all of the personal property to be 
abated, as reported on their application for exemption; and 
 
WHEREAS, Faurecia Automotive Seating, inc. has not purchased and installed all of the 
personal property that was to be abated, contrary to the terms of the Letter of Agreement 
between Faurecia Automotive Seating, inc. and the City of Troy, and in violation of Public Act 
198 of 1974, as amended; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REVOKES the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC), certificate # 2008-507, and hereby VACATES the 
Industrial Development District (IDD) previously granted to Faurecia Automotive Seating, inc., 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

for property located at 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI. 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-200-018, effective 
December 31, 2011, and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Treasurer to 
invoice Faurecia Automotive Seating, inc. for the amount of the abated taxes as calculated by 
the City Assessor’s spreadsheet, which shall be attached and become a part of the Regular 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward, 
by certified mail, a copy of this Resolution to the State Tax Commission (STC), Treasury 
Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971, and to Faurecia Automotive Seating, inc. 
at 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI. 48084. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-7 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 

Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and 
Established: EcoMotors, International – 1055 W. Square Lake  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on August 
25, 2008,  established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1055 W. 
Square Lake, Troy, MI. 48098,  Parcel #; 88-20-08-226-002, in the name of EcoMotors, 
International; and 
 
WHEREAS, Per the Letter of Agreement, between EcoMotors, International and the City of 
Troy, and per Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended, EcoMotors, International was allowed until 
December 31, 2010 to purchase and install all of the personal property to be abated, as 
reported on their application for exemption; and 
 
WHEREAS, EcoMotors, International has not purchased and installed all of the personal 
property that was to be abated, contrary to the terms of the Letter of Agreement between 
EcoMotors, International and the City of Troy, and in violation of Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REVOKES the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC), certificate # 2008-363, and hereby VACATES the 
Industrial Development District (IDD) previously granted to EcoMotors, International, for 
property located at 1055 W. Square Lake, Troy, MI. 48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002, 
effective December 31, Year; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward, 
by certified mail, a copy of this Resolution to the State Tax Commission (STC), Treasury 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971, and to EcoMotors, International at 2401 
W. Big Beaver Ste 100, Troy, MI. 48084. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-8 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 

Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and 
Established: The ProMetal RCT, LLC – 2341 Alger 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 22, 2008,  established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known 
as 2341 Alger, Troy, MI. 48083,  Parcel #; 88-20-26-200-060, in the name of The ProMetal 
RCT, LLC; and 
 
WHEREAS, Per the Letter of Agreement, between The ProMetal RCT, LLC and the City of 
Troy, and per Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended, The ProMetal RCT, LLC was allowed until 
December 31, 2010 to purchase and install all of the personal property to be abated, as 
reported on their application for exemption; and 
 
WHEREAS, The ProMetal RCT, LLC has not purchased and installed all of the personal 
property that was to be abated, contrary to the terms of the Letter of Agreement between The 
ProMetal RCT, LLC and the City of Troy, and in violation of Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REVOKES the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC), certificate # 2008-506, and hereby VACATES the 
Industrial Development District (IDD) previously granted to The ProMetal RCT, LLC, for 
property located at 2341 Alger, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 88-20-26-200-060, effective 
December 31, 2011, and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Treasurer to 
invoice The ProMetal RCT, LLC for the amount of the abated taxes as calculated by the City 
Assessor’s spreadsheet, which shall be attached and become a part of the Regular Minutes of 
this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward, 
by certified mail, a copy of this Resolution to the State Tax Commission (STC), Treasury 
Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971, and to The ProMetal RCT, LLC at 2341 
Alger, Troy, MI. 48083. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

I-9 Reconsideration and Substitution of Resolution Approving Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc. – 1972 Meijer 

  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2010-09-186 
Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to 
Sulzer Metco, Inc., - 1972 Meijer, Moved by Kerwin and Seconded by McGinnis, as it appears 
below:  
 

WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 13, 2010, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property 
known as 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 48084-7143, Parcel # 88-20-32-226-024; and 

 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Sulzer Metco, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 
48084-7143, for seven (7) years; and 

 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on 
September 13, 2010, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing 
units as to the possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc., at 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 48084-7143 may have the effect 
of substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial 
soundness of the taxing unit; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT 
THE GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Sulzer 
Metco, Inc., at 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 48084-7143 shall not substantially impede the 
operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT 
THE GRANTING of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the 
financial soundness of the City of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said 
property; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc., 
at 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 48084-7143, Parcel # 88-20-32-226-024, for personal property 
for a term of seven (7) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of 
Agreement between the City of Troy and Sulzer Metco, Inc., and payment of the 
application fee established in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Sulzer Metco, Inc., a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
COMPLETE the Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, 
Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, 
No: Howrylak  

Yes: 
No: 
 
a) Proposed Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution #2010-09-186 Request for 

Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to Sulzer 
Metco, Inc., - 1972 Meijer,  as  Directed by the State Tax Commission 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2010-09-186, Establishment 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) by STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTING it with the following: 
 

WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 13, 2010, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property 
known as 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 48084-7143, Parcel # 88-20-32-226-024; and 

 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Sulzer Metco, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 
48084-7143, for seven (7) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on 
September 13, 2010, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing 
units as to the possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc., at 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 48084-7143 may have the effect 
of substantially impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial 
soundness of the taxing unit; 

 
WHEREAS, The aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem 
taxes within the City of Troy, after granting this certificate will not exceed 5% of an 
amount equal to the sum of the SEV of the City of Troy, plus the SEV of real and 
personal property thus exempted; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT 
THE GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Sulzer 
Metco, Inc., at 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 48084-7143 shall not substantially impede the 
operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT 
THE GRANTING of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the 
financial soundness of the City of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said 
property; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc., 
at 1972 Meijer, Troy MI, 48084-7143, Parcel # 88-20-32-226-024, for personal property 
for a term of seven (7) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of 
Agreement between the City of Troy and Sulzer Metco, Inc., and payment of the 
application fee established in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Sulzer Metco, Inc., a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
COMPLETE the Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, 
Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of November 14, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal 

Services – Municipal Parking Lots and Local Roads 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contract(s) for seasonal requirements of 
snow removal services under Proposals A and E with an option to renew for one (1) additional 
season to the following low bidders:  Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc of Clawson 
MI for Proposal A – Municipal Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks, and to DiPonio 
Contracting Inc and Florence Cement Company, of Shelby Township MI, for Proposal E - Local 
Roads Emergency Basis, all at hourly rates as contained in the bid tabulation opened 
November 1, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to 
extend the hourly contract prices to other contractors after the successful bidders have been 
employed, to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That awards are CONTINGENT UPON contractors’ submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal 

Services – Home Chore Program and Public Sidewalks 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal services for the City’s municipal sidewalks (Proposal A), code 
enforcement tasks (Proposal B), and the Home Chore Program (Proposal C) with an option to 
renew for one (1) additional season to the low total bidder, MVP Environmental, LLC of Troy as 
the primary contractor for all three (3) proposals; and Brantley Development LLC of Westland, 
as secondary contractor for code enforcement and the home chore program, to be used in the 
event the primary contractor is unable to provide the services as needed, all at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened November 11, 2011, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring April 30, 2012. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
J-5 Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 Funds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th); 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation; and 
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2009 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2011; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy may protect unobligated 2009 funds from recapture for one 
additional year by requesting a waiver; and  
 
WHEREAS, A separate Waiver request form must be submitted for each 2009 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than 
December 1, 2011. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby REQUESTS TO WAIVE 
recapture of 2009 CDBG funds as follows: 
 
Account Number   Project Name    Amount  
172170-730744   Flood Drain Improvements  $ 33,567.00 
172160-732170   Public Services (Yard Services) $ 50,388.00 
172170-731332   Parks –Recreational Facilities $ 81,505.00 
  
J-6 May, as Personal Representative of Jesus Gillard v Bloomfield Township,        

Troy, et. al 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy and the individual Troy defendants named in the matter of Alan A. May, as 
Personal Representative of the Estate of Jesus Winston Gillard, Deceased, v. Bloomfield 
Township, et al., United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, Case No. 
2:11-cv-14453, against any claims and damages.  Furthermore, the City Attorney is 
AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert 
witnesses to adequately represent the City and the Troy defendants.  
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes-Final-October 10, 2011 
b) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-October 18, 2011 
c) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-October 18, 2011 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes-Draft-November 14, 2011 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan Actuarial Valuation of Other Postemployment 

Benefits - December 31, 2010  
b) City of Troy Employees Retirement System Forty-Seventh Annual Actuarial Valuation – 

December 31, 2010  
c) Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2011 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Vandan Kumar Manni to Lieutenant Riesterer – Fire 

Department 
b) Letter of Appreciation from Matt Creech to Steven Vandette – City Engineer  
c) Letter of Appreciation from JoAnne Carlson – American Business Women’s Association 

to Cathy Russ – Library Director 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  University of Michigan-Dearborn’s iLabs eCities Research Recognizes Troy for Its 

Positive Entrepreneurial Climate 
 
N-6  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company Case 

No. U-16892 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  Update and Status of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 21, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, November 28, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 5, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 19, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

 



From: Cynthia A Stewart
To: Beth L Tashnick; Aileen Bittner
Subject: Nov. 21 Agenda
Date: Wednesday, November 16, 2011 10:15:47 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Presentation on Nov. 21 agenda: Troy School District students present the
"Say No to Drugs" pledge forms to the Troy City Council Members.
 

 

           
 

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=STEWARTCA
mailto:TashnickBL@troymi.gov
mailto:BittnerA@troymi.gov
http://www.facebook.com/TroyMI
http://twitter.com/CityTroyMI
https://service.govdelivery.com/service/multi_subscribe.html?code=MIOETROY

BittnerA
Text Box
C-01a



 

 

 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted: November 8, 2010 
 

 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM ......................................................... 1 
2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR ............................................................. 1 
3. SPECIAL MEETINGS ...................................................................................... 1 
4. REGULAR MEETINGS .................................................................................... 2 
5. AGENDA .......................................................................................................... 2 
6. ORDER OF BUSINESS ................................................................................... 2 
7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................ 3 
8. MINUTES ......................................................................................................... 3 
9. PROCLAMATIONS .......................................................................................... 3 
10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS .......................................................... 3 
11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS ....................................................................... 3 
12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING ....................................... 4 
13. PUBLIC HEARING ........................................................................................... 4 
14. CONSENT AGENDA ....................................................................................... 4 
15. APPOINTMENTS ............................................................................................. 4 
15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 

SOCRRA .......................................................................................................... 5 
16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS ................................................ 5 
17. POSTPONE ..................................................................................................... 6 
18. RULES OF ORDER ......................................................................................... 6 
19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES ...................................................................... 6 
20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS ..................... 6 
21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................................... 6 
22. SUSPEND RULES ........................................................................................... 6 
23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION .................................................................................. 6 
24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS ............................. 7 
25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS ......................................................... 7 
26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ..... 7 
27. VIOLATIONS .................................................................................................... 7 
28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 

MEETING OF COUNCIL .................................................................................. 7 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
H-01



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The Mayor Pro Tem shall be elected by the Council from among its members, annually in 
November. 

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member 
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the 
duties of the Mayor. 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2): 

Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, 
or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to 
each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of 
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

 
B. DOCUMENTATION: 

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in the 
Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for each 

specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice calling 
the meeting.  

• Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas 
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to each 
Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call: 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21. 

C. Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
D. Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting (Pursuant to City Charter 

Sections 4.2 and 4.3): 
1) Special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call of the 

Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice). 
 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

2) If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 
writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

E. Public Comment 
F.  Adjournment 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be 
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year. 

5. AGENDA 
A. Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 
 

B. Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 
specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed 
Session is requested for any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each Regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 
 
Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21 

C. Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
D. Carryover Items 
E. Public Hearings 
F. Public Comment – In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Rule 

Number 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors 
G. Response/Reply to Public Comment  
H. Postponed Items 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

I.  Regular Business 
J.  Consent Agenda 

1) Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2) Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion 

K.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
L.  Council Referrals - Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward 

by the Mayor or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting.  

M.  Council Comments - Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the 
next Regular Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are 
not intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

N.  Reports 
O.  Study Items 
P.  Closed Session 
Q.  Adjournment 

7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed sessions 
and Council retreats. 

8. MINUTES 
A. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The 

minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
B. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. 
Where a Closed Session is requested of for any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

9. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion 
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted 
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided 
that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members 
elect.” 

11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING  
Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second and 
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.  

13. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated 
meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

14. CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion. 
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda. Any 
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the 
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and have having it 
considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be 
considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public 
comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item F.  

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit 
such name, for nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to 
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a 
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are 
subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees: 

 
1) Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a roll 

call vote shall be used. 
2) Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting shall 

take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council Member is to 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 
3) When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of votes 

shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 
4) No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of the City 

of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan 
and Trust Board, and the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) unless membership is 
required by Statute or the City Charter. 

5) Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking them 
for their willingness to serve the community. 

6) Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community on 
Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday 
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November. 
 
SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: 
The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on 
the SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: 
City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and 
if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any 
other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion 
of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may 
be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

17. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically 
appear on the appropriate agenda. 

18. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby adopted and 
made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, and the 
City Code. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid 
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored 

by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year. 
The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to 
specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit 
expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate, City pool car, City Vehicle rental rate, or gas mileage at current IRS 
guidelines, depending upon the mode of transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be 
authorized for payment by the City Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will 
be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
A.  Council members who are unable to attend a Council meeting and desire an  excused 
 absence shall notify the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk of their absence in 
  writing prior to the meeting and indicate the reason for the absence. The reason 
 shall be entered in the proceedings of the Council at the time of each  absence. 
 
B.  In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is 

directed to supply such absent Council member with information about any special 
meetings that may have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5) minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate material will be 
prohibited. 

26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 

28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code 
Title 18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 



BittnerA
Text Box
I-04













































 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:        November 15, 2011                       
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council    
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
 
Subject: 2012 City Council Meeting Schedule 
 
 
Background 
 
The Community Affairs Director is continuously working to keep the City of Troy website updated.  
We need your assistance regarding dates for the 2012 City Council meetings for inclusion on the City 
website calendar, in future Troy Today issues, press releases to the media and the cable bulletin 
board.  The following dates take into account all holidays and election days (per the City Clerk’s 
Office), and are submitted for your approval: 
 
Recommendation 
 
Monday, January 9 & 23 
Monday, February 6 & 20   
Monday, March 5 & 19 
Monday, April 2 & 16 
Monday, May 7 & 14 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 13 & 27 
Monday, September 10 & 24 
Monday, October 8 & 22 
Monday, November 12 & 26 
Monday, December 3 & 17 
 
Budget Meetings April 23 & April 30 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-05



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:          October 20, 2011                    
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 

Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) previously Granted and 
Established; Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. – 2350 Meijer 

 
 
Background: 
 
  On September 22, 2008, City Council established and Industrial Development District (IDD) 
and granted an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Faurecia Automotive 
Seating, inc. at 2350 Meijer (parcel # 88-20-32-200-018). 
 
  Per the application, and the Letter of Agreement Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. was to 
spend $1,145,000 on the project, and add 47 jobs to this location in Troy. 
 
  Per Resolution, and State law, they had until December 31, 2010 to complete the project. 
 
  As of today’s date, they have spent $253,219 (22% of their stated costs).  They have saved 
$3,790.94 in abated taxes. 
 
  Per the terms of the Letter of Agreement, and State law, the City Council may vacate the 
District, revoke the Exemption Certificate, and bill the company for any tax savings they 
have realized while not meeting the terms of the Letter of Agreement and their application.   
 
  Council may choose to allow the exemption to continue, with the existing purchases by 
taking “No Action” on the Resolution presented with this item.  
 
  It is staff’s recommendation to vacate the district and revoke the exemption. 
   
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\Faurecia\Memo Revoke Vacate 10.20.11 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-06



 
 
 
October 25, 2011 
 
Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. 
Attn:  Dave Borysiak 
2050 Auburn 
Auburn Heights, MI 48326 
 
Re:  Tax Abatement Revocation 
 
Mr. Borysiak, 
 
  On August 25, 2008, the City Council of the City of Troy established an Industrial 
Development District (IDD) at 2350 Meijer, and granted an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. 
 
  Per the Letter of Agreement between Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. and 
the City, Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. was to occupy the building, and 
spend $1,145,000 for personal property no later than December 31, 2010. 
 
   As of this date, the company has spent $253,219 (22% of the agreed to 
amount). 
 
   I will be presenting a Resolution to City Council on November 21, 2011 to 
vacate the IDD, and rescind the IFEC.   
 
   Faurecia has saved $3,832.82 in abated taxes through the December 2011 
billing.  Should the Resolution pass, Faurecia will be billed for these abated taxes, 
per the terms of the Letter of Agreement. 
 
   You are allowed to present your rationale for not meeting the terms of the 
agreement, at this meeting.  Council will then decide to vacate and rescind, or 
take no action.   
 
   Please feel free to contact me at 248-524-3305, or by email at 
licarila@troymi.gov, if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Leger A. (Nino) Licari 
City Assessor 



 

 
 
August 18, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., 2350 Meijer, Troy MI. 48084  
 
 
Background: 
 
 Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., is requesting the creation of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) at 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI. 48084, in order to apply for an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), for tax abatement at the same location. 

 
The exemption is for new equipment to handle increased business.  They are receiving MEDC 
incentives, and a tax abatement form Auburn Hills for the expansion there and in Troy. 
 
They currently have 339 employees in Troy.  They plan to add up to 47 new jobs to Troy with this 
project. 
 
The abatement requested is for eight (8) years, to match the abatement received from Auburn 
Hills. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $1,145,000 for the project.  Over an 

eight (8) year life, the estimated total taxes are $50,818.91, of which $16,110.28 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $25,409.45 in total taxes, of which $8,055.14 would be 
saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

licarila
Text Box
C-04



 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Outcome III, “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a 
unique community in a changing and interconnected world.”Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment” is met with this expansion.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\Faurecia\CouncilPakIDD PH 











Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:

Real Property?

Personal Property?

Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?

Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?

Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the

plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial

park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing

building?

Will this project require improvement of your road

service?

Will this project require improvement of your

sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm

sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water

services?

Will this project require additional police

personnel, police equipment or a need for new

police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire

personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment

or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided

through Local Development Finance Authority or

Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 

must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):

Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

$0.00 $1,145,000.00 $1,145,000.00

Leger A. (Nino) Licari

licarila
Text Box
Faurecia Automotive Seating Inc



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

8/18/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...

licarila
Text Box



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

8/18/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box



Legal Description for IDD & IFEC 
 
Faurecia 
2350 Meijer 
Troy MI 48084 
 
88-20-32-200-018 
 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 32  
PART OF SW 1/4 OF NE 1/4  
BEG AT PT DIST  
S 89-53-40 E 1333.55 FT &  
S 00-11-30 W 2274.16 FT &  
N 88-10-50 W 714.54 FT  
FROM N 1/4 COR,  
TH S 00-11-30 W 555.88 FT,  
TH N 88-20-19 W 351.36 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO LEFT,  
RAD 500 FT, CHORD BEARS  
S 84-09-40 W 130.53 FT,  
DIST OF 130.90 FT,  
TH S 76-39-41 W 158.10 FT,  
TH N 00-32-00 E 615.41 FT,  
TH S 88-10-50 E 631.26 FT  
TO BEG 8.24 A 



Market Value 1,145,000 1,049,622 874,755 656,153 437,523 255,295 127,698 53,237 17,760 0 0 0 0
50% of Value 572,500 524,811 437,377 328,077 218,762 127,647 63,849 26,619 8,880 0 0 0 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 524,811 437,377 328,077 218,762 127,647 63,849 26,619 8,880 0 0 0 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59500 $312.26 $260.24 $195.21 $130.16 $75.95 $37.99 $15.84 $5.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
County 4.64610 $2,438.32 $2,032.10 $1,524.28 $1,016.39 $593.06 $296.65 $123.67 $41.26 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $1,768.09 $1,473.52 $1,105.29 $737.01 $430.04 $215.11 $89.68 $29.92 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $831.51 $692.98 $519.80 $346.61 $202.24 $101.16 $42.17 $14.07 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 5.28560 $2,773.94 $2,311.80 $1,734.08 $1,156.29 $674.69 $337.48 $140.70 $46.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.13000 $2,167.47 $1,806.37 $1,354.96 $903.49 $527.18 $263.70 $109.94 $36.67 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $201.05 $167.56 $125.69 $83.81 $48.90 $24.46 $10.20 $3.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
City 9.28000 $4,870.24 $4,058.86 $3,044.55 $2,030.11 $1,184.57 $592.52 $247.02 $82.41 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total 29.27320 $15,362.89 $12,803.43 $9,603.85 $6,403.85 $3,736.65 $1,869.07 $779.22 $259.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total 8 Years $50,818.91
Total City 8 Yr $16,110.28

50% Total 8 Yr $25,409.45
50% Total City 8 Yr $8,055.14 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc.

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement Policy Resolution  06/05/06 
 
F-5   Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and                             
Headquarters Companies 
 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) 
reducing economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial 
areas, (e) encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in 
industrial areas, and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for 
certain industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Troy, that the 
following criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in 
the review of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial 
Development Districts (IDD) by the City Council: 

 
(1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 

improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to 
be abated; and 

 
(2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to 
be abated; and  

 
(3)   That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to 

prove by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in 
compliance with the basic guidelines established above. 

 
(4)    That the company provide documentation that they are Michigan Economic 

Growth Authority (MEGA) eligible, or are moving into existing vacant 
buildings, or are retaining or expanding their job base in Troy.   

 
 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting 
the aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by 
laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
Yes:       Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini 
No:        Howrylak 
Absent:  Broomfield, Stine 



08/18/08 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., 2350 Meijer, Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc, 
(“Company”) and the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the 
requirements of Public Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 
22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc, understands that 
through its investment of $1,145,000 and its qualification for Michigan 
Economic Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its 
investment of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually 
investing in and benefiting from this economic development project, and 
furthermore, agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 8 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2018, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2010, Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc will report to the 
Assessing Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of 
this project and indicate any differences and the reason for 
any differences in the cost or scope of the project as 
compared to the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc, agrees to remain within 

the City of Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax 
(IFT) abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, 
unless permission for relocation is granted by the City 
Council of the City of Troy. 

 
Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc, further understands that if 
it chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for 
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc, understands that the City 

of Troy may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC 
and/or recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which 
were abated if the project has not been completed, 
expenditures made, as represented by the Company, in 
Section 12’C of its application, by sending a copy of this 
Agreement along with a copy of the City Council Resolution 
authorizing such action to the State Tax Commission. 

 



 
 
 
5.)  Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc, agrees that it will operate 

the Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State 
and Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to 
zoning, outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and 
water quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, 
and all of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 22, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., for the establishment of 

an Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-32-200-018  2350 Meijer, Troy,  MI.  48084 

T2N, R11E, Section 32 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



C- ## Resolution for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for 
Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. – 2350 Meijer 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2008- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI. 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-
200-018, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  September 22, 2008 
 

- 3 - 

possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for The 
ProMetal RCT, LLC, at 2341 Alger, Troy, MI 48083 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for The ProMetal RCT, LLC, at 2341 
Alger, Troy, MI 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or the 
other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for The ProMetal RCT, LLC, Inc., at 2341 
Alger, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #88-20-26-200-060, for personal property for a term of twelve 
(12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of 
Troy and The ProMetal RCT, LLC, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and The ProMetal RCT, 
LLC, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-4 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Faurecia Automotive 

Seating, 2350 Meijer 
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner, Mike 
Kamsickas. There was no public comment. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Eisenbacher from Participating in the 
Vote  
 
Resolution #2008-09-288 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES Council Member Eisenbacher from 
participating in the vote for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – 
Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer in accordance with Section 4.7 – Organization and 
Rules of the Council (c) of the Troy City Charter. 
 

licarila
Text Box



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  September 22, 2008 
 

- 4 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Establish an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Faurecia 
Automotive Seating 
 
Resolution #2008-09-289 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-
200-018, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Howrylak  
Abstain:  Eisenbacher  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-5 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to Faurecia 

Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer  
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Eisenbacher from Participating in the 
Vote  
 
Resolution #2008-09-290 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES Council Member Eisenbacher from 
participating in the vote for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – 
Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer in accordance with Section 4.7 – Organization and 
Rules of the Council (c) of the Troy City Charter. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Fleming from Participating in the Vote  
 
Resolution #2008-09-291 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  September 22, 2008 
 

- 5 - 

Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES Council Member Fleming from 
participating in the vote for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – 
Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer in accordance with Section 4.7 – Organization and 
Rules of the Council (c) of the Troy City Charter. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: None 
Absent: Eisenbacher  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Vote on Resolution to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 
Faurecia Automotive Seating 
 
Resolution #2008-09-292 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 22, 2008, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known 
as 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-200-018;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 
48084, for eight (8) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on September 22, 
2008, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Faurecia 
Automotive Seating, Inc., at 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 48084 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., at 
2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 48084 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or 
the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., at 
2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel #88-20-32-200-018, for personal property for a term of 
eight (8) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of 
Troy and Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  September 22, 2008 
 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Faurecia 
Automotive Seating, Inc., a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Kerwin  
No:  Howrylak  
Abstain: Eisenbacher, Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-6 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Tepel Brothers 

Printing, Inc., 1725 John R  
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioners. Robert F. 
Fuchs and James Tepel. There was no public comment. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Fleming from Participating in the Vote  
 
Resolution #2008-09-293 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES Council Member Fleming from 
participating in the vote for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) and 
the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – Tepel Brothers Printing, 
Inc., 1725 John R in accordance with Section 4.7 – Organization and Rules of the Council (c) of 
the Troy City Charter. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Establish an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Tepel 
Brothers Printing, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2008-09-294 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc., for property known as 1725 John R, Troy, MI 48085, 
Parcel # 88-20-26-479-040, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; 
and 

licarila
Text Box



88-IP-08-100-507 2009 Est. T.C.V. FAURECIA AUTOMOTIVE SEATING
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 2350 MEIJER
Map #: 88-20-32-200-018 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48084

<< 2009 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements TBL
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 244,255 50 122,128
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= 244,255 TCV= 122,128 Assessed Value= 61,060

2009 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-100-507 = 122,128
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2008 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

4.40
2009 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

61,060 61,060
2009 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT

61,060 61,060 61,060 61,060 61,060 61,060



88-IP-08-100-507 2010 Est. T.C.V. FAURECIA AUTOMOTIVE SEATING
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 2350 MEIJER
Map #: 88-20-32-200-018 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48084

<< 2010 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Bought Machinery & Office, Elec.
During Equipment Video & Test
2009 176,043*89% 72,802*84%
Prior
Total 176,043 72,802
TCV-> 156,678 61,154

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements TBL
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 50
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= 248,845 TCV= 217,832 Assessed Value= 108,920

2010 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-100-507 = 217,832
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2009 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

61,060 61,060 61,060 61,060 -0.30
2010 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

47,860 108,920 61,060
2010 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT

108,920 108,920 108,920 108,920 108,920 108,920



88-IP-08-100-507 2011 Est. T.C.V. FAURECIA AUTOMOTIVE SEATING
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 2350 MEIJER
Map #: 88-20-32-200-018 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48084

<< 2011 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Bought Machinery & Office, Elec.
During Equipment Video & Test
2010 4,374*84%
2009 176,043*76% 72,802*64%
Prior
Total 176,043 77,176
TCV-> 133,793 50,267

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements TBL
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 50
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= 253,219 TCV= 184,060 Assessed Value= 92,030

2011 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-100-507 = 184,060
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2010 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

108,920 108,920 108,920 108,920 1.70
2011 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

16,890 1,840 -18,730
2011 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT

92,030 92,030 92,030 92,030 92,030 92,030



Value Contracted $1,145,000 $1,145,000 $1,145,000
Actual Value $244,255 $248,845 $253,219

    
Year 2009 2010 2011

    
Taxable Value $61,060 $108,920 $92,030

Taxes 2009 2009 2010 2010 2011 2011
100% of 
Millage Taxes

100% of 
Millage Taxes

100% of 
Millage Taxes

Trans 0.59000 $36.03 0.59000 $64.26 0.59000 $54.30
County 4.64610 $283.69 4.64610 $506.05 4.64610 $427.58

Zoo 0.10000 $6.11 0.10000 $10.89 0.10000 $9.20
Int Schools 3.36900 $205.71 3.36900 $366.95 3.36900 $310.05
Comm Coll 1.58440 $96.74 1.58440 $172.57 1.58440 $145.81

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00
School Op 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.10000 $250.35 4.70000 $511.92 4.10000 $377.32

Hold Harmless 4.66860 $285.06 5.03810 $548.75 4.66860 $429.65
Admin 0.14390 $8.79 0.14990 $16.33 0.14390 $13.24

City 9.28000 $566.64 9.40000 $1,023.85 10.19000 $937.79
Total 28.48200 $1,739.11 29.57750 $3,221.58 29.39200 $2,704.95

Tax Savings (50% 
of Total) $869.56 $1,610.79 $1,352.47

Total Taxes Owed $3,832.82

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc.

Estimate of Total Taxes, Tax Savings and Taxes Owed from Unfullfilled IFEC Abatement



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:          October 20, 2011                    
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 

Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) previously Granted and 
Established; EcoMotors, International – 1055 W. Square Lake 

 
 
Background: 
 
  On August 25, 2008, City Council established and Industrial Development District (IDD) and 
granted an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors at 1055 W. Square 
Lake (parcel # 88-20-08-226-002). 
 
  Per the application, and the Letter of Agreement EcoMotors was to spend $3,548,100 on 
the project, and add 157 jobs to this new location in Troy. 
 
  The abatement was also considered the local match for their MEGA incentives. 
 
  Per Resolution, and State law, they had until December 31, 2010 to complete the project. 
 
  As of today’s date, they have not moved into the building at 1055 W. Square Lake, nor 
purchased any equipment at all. 
 
  They have applied and been approved for a tax abatement in Allen Park, and will be 
locating there in mid 2012. 
 
  Per the terms of the Letter of Agreement, the City is able to bill the company for any 
abated taxes they have benefitted from by the exemption.  As they have not purchased 
any equipment, they have not received any tax exemption, and are therefore not liable for 
any repayment.  
 
  It is in the Council’s authority to vacate the district, and to rescind the abatement.  This is 
staff’s strong recommendation. 
   
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\EcoMotors\Memo Revoke Vacate 10.20.11 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-07



 
 
 
October 25, 2011 
 
EcoMotors International 
Attn:  Patrick S. Aubry 
17000 Federal Ste 200 
Allen Park, MI 48101 
 
Re:  Tax Abatement Revocation 
 
Mr. Aubrey, 
 
 
  On August 25, 2008, the City Council of the City of Troy established an Industrial 
Development District (IDD) at 1055 W. Square Lake, and granted an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors International. 
 
  Per the Letter of Agreement between EcoMotors and the City, EcoMotors was 
to occupy the building, and spend $3,548,100 for personal property no later 
than December 31, 2010. 
 
   Obviously, that has not happened. 
 
   I will be presenting a Resolution to City Council on November 21, 2011 to 
vacate the IDD, and rescind the IFEC.   
 
   As you have not purchased any of the equipment that was abated, there will 
be no repayment of abated taxes billed to EcoMotors. 
 
   You are allowed to present your rationale for not meeting the terms of the 
agreement, at this meeting.  As you have changed your plans for the company, 
are now located in Allen Park (and receiving a tax abatement there), it is not, 
however, necessary for you to be at this meeting. 
 
   Please feel free to contact me at 248-524-3305, or by email at 
licarila@troymi.gov, if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Leger A. (Nino) Licari 
City Assessor 



 

 
 
August 25, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for EcoMotors, International, 1055 W Square Lake  
 
 
Background: 
 
 EcoMotors, International is requesting the creation of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 

1055 W. Square Lake, in order to apply for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC), for 
tax abatement at the same location. 

 
EcoMotors has licensed with Advanced Propulsion Technologies (APT) to further develop for 
commercial use, the Opposed-Piston-Opposed-Cylinder (OPOC) engine that was developed for 
Military use. 
 
Their intent is to have a mid size demonstrator automobile, achieving 100 miles per gallon, out by 
February of 2010.   
 
They are a very well funded firm, intent on hiring the best engineers in the area, and have 
specifically targeted this area for the sheer volume of engineering expertise that are no longer 
working in the automobile industry. 
 
They currently have 7 employees in Troy, and another 7 in California.  They plan to add 157 new 
jobs to Troy with this project. 
 
They intend to occupy the 30,000 square foot engineering building at 1055 W. Square Lake 
(formerly occupied by Hi-Lex). 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

Financial Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $3,548,100 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $157,714.59, of which $49,997.65 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $78,857.29 in total taxes, of which $24,998.83 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\EcoMotors\CouncilPakIDD PH 



Michigan Department of Treasury
1012 (Rev. 5-07)

Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate
Issued under authority of Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended. Filing is mandatory.

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and two copies of this form and the required attachments (three complete sets) with the clerk of the 

local government unit. The State Tax Commission (STC) requires two complete sets (one original and one copy). One copy is retained

by the clerk. If you have any questions regarding the completion of this form or would like to request an informational packet, call (517) 

373-3272.

Signature of Clerk

1a. Company Name (Applicant must be the occupant/operator of the facility)

1c. Facility Address (City, State, ZIP Code) (real and/or personal property location) 1d. City/Township/Village (indicate which) 1e. County

1b. Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code - Sec. 2(10) (4 or 6 Digit Code)

2. Type of Approval Requested

New (Sec. 2(4))

Speculative Building (Sec. 3(8))

Research and Development (Sec. 2(9))

Rehabilitation (Sec. 3(1))

Transfer (1 copy only)

3a. School District where facility is located 3b. School Code

4. Amount of years requested for exemption (1-12 Years)

5. Per section 5, the application shall contain or be accompanied by a general description of the facility and a general description of the proposed use of the facility, the general
nature and extent of the restoration, replacement, or construction to be undertaken, a descriptive list of the equipment that will be part of the facility.  Attach additional page(s) if
more room is needed.

6a. Cost of land and building improvements (excluding cost of land)

6b. Cost of machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures

6c. Total Project Costs

* Attach list of improvements and associated costs. 
* Also attach a copy of building permit if project has already begun.

* Attach itemized listing with month, day and year of beginning of installation, plus total

Real Property Costs

Personal Property Costs

Total of Real & Personal Costs

7. Indicate the time schedule for start and finish of construction and equipment installation. Projects must be completed within a two year period of the effective date of the 
certificate unless otherwise approved by the STC.

Real Property Improvements

Personal Property Improvements

Owned Leased

Owned Leased

9. No. of existing jobs at this facility that will be retained as a result of this project. 10. No. of new jobs at this facility expected to create within 2 years of completion.

Begin Date (M/D/Y) End Date (M/D/Y)

12a. Check the type of District the facility is located in:

12b. Date district was established by local government unit (contact local unit) 12c. Is this application for a speculative building (Sec. 3(8))?

Date received by Local Unit

To be completed by Clerk of Local Government Unit

APPLICANT INFORMATION
All boxes must be completed.

8. Are State Education Taxes reduced or abated by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC)? If yes, applicant must attach a signed MEDC Letter of 

Commitment to receive this exemption. Yes No

11. Rehabilitation applications only: Complete a, b and c of this section. You must attach the assessor's statement of SEV for the entire plant rehabilitation district and 
obsolescence statement for property. The Taxable Value (TV) data below must be as of December 31 of the year prior to the rehabilitation.

a. TV of Real Property (excluding land)

b. TV of Personal Property (excluding inventory)

c. Total TV

Industrial Development District Plant Rehabilitation District

Yes No

Application Number Date Received by STC

STC Use Only

* Round Costs to Nearest Dollar

EcoMotors International 3714

1055 W. Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098 City of Troy Oakland

Troy 63150

12

The planned technical facility will house the technical research staff and laboratories for EcoMotors International.  At 

maturity the center will providemaore than 160 new jobs, have a laboratory that will include at least 2 dynamometer 

cells, and a garage facility that will have 4-6 hoists.  See attachments for additional details.

$0.00

$3,548,100.00

$3,548,100.00

12/1/08 12/31/10

6/1/08 12/31/10

7 157

8/25/08

licarila
Text Box
06/12/08



licarila
Text Box































Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.
LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
EcoMotors International

licarila
Text Box
Leger A. (Nino) Licari





                                
 

 
 
 
 

2401 West Big Beaver Rd. #100 • Troy, MI 48084 • USA • phone 248.643.8800 • fax 248.643.8855 • www.ecomotors.com 

 

EcoMotors International was incorporated in the State of Delaware on January 9, 2008.  Khosla 
Ventures (Menlo Park, CA) became the lead investor on February 9, 2008.  Near-term, EcoMotors 
will build a company to commercialize the Opposed-Piston-Opposed-Cylinder (OPOC) engine 
technology, with the near-term objective of building, by February of 2010, a demonstrator vehicle 
capable of achieving 100mpg.  

The OPOC engine is a new mechanical power system.  The design is based on the Opposed Piston 
Opposed Cylinder engine that was developed for the military by Advanced Propulsion 
Technologies (APT).  EcoMotors has entered into a License Agreement with APT under which 
further development of the OPOC technology for commercial applications will proceed. 
 
The base design (shown below) is highly flexible and can be: 
• Adapted to utilize any combustion system (i.e. compression ignition, spark ignition, etc.) 
• Operated on a wide variety of fuels 
• Sized for a wide array of product lines 

 
 

 
 
 
 

EcoMotors is currently headquartered in Troy, Michigan, with a staff of 7 management and 
product development engineers.  In addition to the Troy facilities, the company has an R&D center 
in Goleta, California, which also currently employs 7 people. 

With the recent approval of a $6.3MIL MEGA Tax Credit, EcoMotors plans to construct a new 
Technical Center in Troy Michigan.  With a capital investment exceeding $7MIL and creation of 
approximately 156 new jobs, EcoMotors will put in place the technical team and facilities 
necessary to develop the demonstrator vehicle, and to spearhead the development of large scale 
commercialization of the product as early as 2011/12. 
       June 2008 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

6/13/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

6/13/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



Legal Description for : 88-20-08-226-002 
                                       1055 W Square Lake 
                                       EcoMotors 
 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 5 & 8  
PART OF SE 1/4 SEC 5 &  
PART OF NE 1/4 SEC 8  
BEG AT PT DIST  
S 87-05-55 W 125 FT  
FROM NE COR OF SEC 8,  
TH S 02-30-26 E 241.27 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO LEFT,  
RAD 2973.79 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 77-41-27 W 491.32 FT,  
DIST OF 491.89 FT,  
TH N 02-30-26 W 109.23 FT,  
TH N 74-08-01 E 67.20 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT,  
RAD 1234.77 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 76-54-55 E 119.86 FT,  
DIST OF 119.91 FT,  
TH N 79-41-50 E 130.93 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT,  
RAD 1034 FT, CHORD BEARS  
N 82-27-57 E 99.88 FT,  
DIST OF 99.92 FT,  
TH N 85-14-03 E 62.30 FT,  
TH S 02-48-28 E 60.10 FT  
TO BEG.                   2.26 A 
6-25-01 FR 08-226 -001 & 20-05-480-001 



Market Value 3,548,100 3,252,543 2,710,670 2,033,273 1,355,787 791,101 395,709 164,971 55,034 13,775 2,300 193 0
50% of Value 1,774,050 1,626,272 1,355,335 1,016,637 677,893 395,551 197,854 82,486 27,517 6,888 1,150 96 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 1,626,272 1,355,335 1,016,637 677,893 395,551 197,854 82,486 27,517 6,888 1,150 96 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59500 $967.63 $806.42 $604.90 $403.35 $235.35 $117.72 $49.08 $16.37 $4.10 $0.68 $0.06 $0.00
County 4.64610 $7,555.82 $6,297.02 $4,723.40 $3,149.56 $1,837.77 $919.25 $383.24 $127.85 $32.00 $5.34 $0.45 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $5,478.91 $4,566.12 $3,425.05 $2,283.82 $1,332.61 $666.57 $277.89 $92.71 $23.20 $3.88 $0.32 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $2,576.66 $2,147.39 $1,610.76 $1,074.05 $626.71 $313.48 $130.69 $43.60 $10.91 $1.82 $0.15 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 5.28560 $8,595.82 $7,163.76 $5,373.53 $3,583.07 $2,090.72 $1,045.78 $435.99 $145.44 $36.40 $6.08 $0.51 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.13000 $6,716.50 $5,597.53 $4,198.71 $2,799.70 $1,633.62 $817.14 $340.67 $113.65 $28.45 $4.75 $0.40 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $623.02 $519.23 $389.47 $259.70 $151.54 $75.80 $31.60 $10.54 $2.64 $0.44 $0.04 $0.00
City 9.28000 $15,091.80 $12,577.51 $9,434.39 $6,290.85 $3,670.71 $1,836.09 $765.47 $255.36 $63.92 $10.67 $0.89 $0.00
Total 29.27320 $47,606.17 $39,674.99 $29,760.21 $19,844.11 $11,579.04 $5,791.83 $2,414.62 $805.52 $201.62 $33.67 $2.82 $0.00

Total 12 Years $157,714.59
Total City 12 Yr $49,997.65

50% Total 12 Yr $78,857.29
50% Total City 12 $24,998.83 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
EcoMotors International

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement Policy Resolution  06/05/06 
 
F-5   Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and                             
Headquarters Companies 
 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) 
reducing economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial 
areas, (e) encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in 
industrial areas, and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for 
certain industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Troy, that the 
following criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in 
the review of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial 
Development Districts (IDD) by the City Council: 

 
(1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 

improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to 
be abated; and 

 
(2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to 
be abated; and  

 
(3)   That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to 

prove by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in 
compliance with the basic guidelines established above. 

 
(4)    That the company provide documentation that they are Michigan Economic 

Growth Authority (MEGA) eligible, or are moving into existing vacant 
buildings, or are retaining or expanding their job base in Troy.   

 
 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting 
the aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by 
laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
Yes:       Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini 
No:        Howrylak 
Absent:  Broomfield, Stine 



06/16/08 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
EcoMotors International, 1055 W. Square Lake, Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between EcoMotors International, (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), EcoMotors International, understands that through its 
investment of $3,548,100 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2022, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2010, EcoMotors International will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) EcoMotors International, agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
EcoMotors International, further understands that if it 
chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for 
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  EcoMotors International, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  EcoMotors International, agrees that it will operate the 

Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, August 25, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from EcoMotors, International, for the establishment of an 

Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-08-226-002  1055 W. Square Lake, Troy,  MI.  48098 

T2N, R11E, Section 8 

 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI  48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
1055 W SQUARE LAKE 
TROY  MI  48098 

 
O JOHN COLETTI 
ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL 
2401 W BIG BEAVER STE 100 
TROY  MI 48084 

 
CURT BRAINARD 
CLB BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 
PO BOX 95 
NORTHVILLE MI 48167 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  









CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  August 25, 2008 
 

- 2 - 

The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving comment from the Petitioner and Audre 
Zembrzuski. 
  
Resolution #2008-08-260 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for EcoMotors International, for property known as 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, MI 
48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-
06-238; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to EcoMotors, 

1055 West Square Lake 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving no comment from the Public. 
 
Resolution #2008-08-261 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on August 
25, 2008, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 1055 West 
Square Lake, Troy MI, 48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-226-002;  
 
WHEREAS, An application has been submitted by EcoMotors International, for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, 
MI 48098, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on August 25, 
2008, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors 
International, at 1055 West Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, at 1055 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  August 25, 2008 
 

- 3 - 

West Square Lake Troy, MI 48098 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for EcoMotors International, Inc., at 1055 
West Square Lake, Troy, MI 48098, Parcel #88-20-08-227-004, for personal property for a term 
of twelve (12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and EcoMotors International, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and EcoMotors, 
International, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Concept Development Plan Approval – Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development 

(PUD-013) – West Side of Crooks, North Side of New King (5500 New King)  
Section 8 - O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District  

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving comment from the Petitioner. 
 
Resolution #2008-08-262 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner Tinelle Properties, LLC has requested Concept Development Plan 
approval, pursuant to article 35.50.01, for Troy Plaza Planned Unit Development (PUD-013), 
located on the west side of Crooks and north side of New King, in Section 8, within the O-M 
zoning district, being approximately 6.16 acres in size;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Concept Development 
Plan on July 8, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 35.30.00; 
and  
 

licarila
Text Box



88-IP-08-100-363 2009 Est. T.C.V. ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 1055 W SQUARE LAKE
Map #: 88-20-08-226-002 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48098

<< 2009 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements TBL
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 50
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= TCV= Assessed Value=

2009 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-100-363 =
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2008 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

4.40
2009 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

2009 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT



88-IP-08-100-363 2010 Est. T.C.V. ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 1055 W SQUARE LAKE
Map #: 88-20-08-226-002 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48098

<< 2010 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements TBL
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 50
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= TCV= Assessed Value=

2010 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-100-363 =
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2009 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

-0.30
2010 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

2010 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT



88-IP-08-100-363 2011 Est. T.C.V. ECOMOTORS INTERNATIONAL
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 1055 W SQUARE LAKE
Map #: 88-20-08-226-002 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48098

<< 2011 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements TBL
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 50
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= TCV= Assessed Value=

2011 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-100-363 =
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2010 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

1.70
2011 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

2011 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT



Value Contracted $3,548,100 $3,548,100 $3,548,100
Actual Value 0 0 0

    
Year 2009 2010 2011

    
Taxable Value 0 0 0

Taxes 2009 2009 2010 2010 2011 2011
100% of 
Millage Taxes

100% of 
Millage Taxes

100% of 
Millage Taxes

Trans 0.59000 $0.00 0.59000 $0.00 0.59000 $0.00
County 4.64610 $0.00 4.64610 $0.00 4.64610 $0.00

Zoo 0.10000 $0.00 0.10000 $0.00 0.10000 $0.00
Int Schools 3.36900 $0.00 3.36900 $0.00 3.36900 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $0.00 1.58440 $0.00 1.58440 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00
School Op 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.10000 $0.00 4.70000 $0.00 4.10000 $0.00

Hold Harmless 4.66860 $0.00 5.03810 $0.00 4.66860 $0.00
Admin 0.14390 $0.00 0.14990 $0.00 0.14390 $0.00

City 9.28000 $0.00 9.40000 $0.00 9.28000 $0.00
Total 28.48200 $0.00 29.57750 $0.00 28.48200 $0.00

Tax Savings (50% 
of Total) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Taxes Owed $0.00

City of Troy - Assessing Department
EcoMotors International

Estimate of Total Taxes, Tax Savings and Taxes Owed from Unfullfilled IFEC Abatement



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:          October 20, 2011                    
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 

Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) previously Granted and 
Established; The ProMetal RCT, LLC – 2341 Alger 

 
 
Background: 
 
  On September 22, 2008, City Council established and Industrial Development District (IDD) 
and granted an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for The ProMetal RCT, LLC at 
2341 Alger (parcel # 88-20-26-200-060). 
 
  Per the application, and the Letter of Agreement ProMetal was to spend $3,800,000 on the 
project, and add 3 jobs to this location in Troy. 
 
  The abatement was also considered the local match for their MEGA incentives. 
 
  Per Resolution, and State law, they had until December 31, 2010 to complete the project. 
 
  As of today’s date, they have spent $2,702,302 (71% of their stated costs).  They have saved 
$41,657.60 in abated taxes. 
 
  Per the terms of the Letter of Agreement, and State law, the City Council may vacate the 
District, revoke the Exemption Certificate, and bill the company for any tax savings they 
have realized while not meeting the terms of the Letter of Agreement and their application.   
 
  Council may choose to allow the exemption to continue, with the existing purchases by 
taking “No Action” on the Resolution presented with this item.  
 
  It is staff’s recommendation to vacate the district and revoke the exemption. 
   
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\ProMetal\Memo Revoke Vacate 10.20.11 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-08



 
 
 
October 25, 2011 
 
The ProMetal RCT, LLC 
Attn:  Doris Pedersen 
2341 Alger 
Troy, MI 48083 
 
Re:  Tax Abatement Revocation 
 
Ms. Pedersen, 
 
  On August 25, 2008, the City Council of the City of Troy established an Industrial 
Development District (IDD) at 2341 Alger, and granted an Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to The ProMetal RCT, LLC. 
 
  Per the Letter of Agreement between ProMetal and the City, ProMetal was to 
occupy the building, and spend $3,800,000 for personal property no later than 
December 31, 2010. 
 
   As of this date, the company has spent $2,702,302 (71% of the agreed to 
amount). 
 
   I will be presenting a Resolution to City Council on November 21, 2011 to 
vacate the IDD, and rescind the IFEC.   
 
   ProMetal has saved $42,085.78 in abated taxes through the December 2011 
billing.  Should the Resolution pass, ProMetal will be billed for these abated taxes, 
per the terms of the Letter of Agreement. 
 
   You are allowed to present your rationale for not meeting the terms of the 
agreement, at this meeting.  Council will then decide to to vacate and rescind, 
or take no action.   
 
   Please feel free to contact me at 248-524-3305, or by email at 
licarila@troymi.gov, if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Leger A. (Nino) Licari 
City Assessor 



 

 
 
August 15, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for The ProMetal RCT, LLC, 2341 Alger, Troy MI. 48083  
 
 
Background: 
 
 The ProMetal RCT, LLC is requesting the creation of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 

2341 Alger, Troy, MI. 48083, in order to apply for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC), for tax abatement at the same location. 

 
The exemption is for new equipment that will be used to manufacture molds and cores for sand 
casting in 3DP printing machines. 
 
They currently have 3 employees at this location.  They plan to add up to 20 new jobs to Troy with 
this project. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 
application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $3,800,000 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $168,911.65, of which $53,547.28 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $84,455.82 in total taxes, of which $26,773.64 would 
be saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

licarila
Text Box
C-02



 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the amended tax abatement policy of the City Council of the 

City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Outcome III, “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a 
unique community in a changing and interconnected world.”Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment” is met with this expansion.   

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\ProMetal\CouncilPakIDD PH 











Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:

Real Property?

Personal Property?

Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?

Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?

Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the

plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial

park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing

building?

Will this project require improvement of your road

service?

Will this project require improvement of your

sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm

sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water

services?

Will this project require additional police

personnel, police equipment or a need for new

police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire

personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment

or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided

through Local Development Finance Authority or

Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 

must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):

Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

$0.00 $3,800,000.00 $3,800,000.00

Leger A. (Nino) Licari, CMAE IV, City Assessor

licarila
Text Box
The ProMetal RCT, LLC



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

8/15/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source 
information represented should be consulted for verification. 

Page 1 of 1

8/15/2008http://gis/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=TROY&ClientVersion=4.0&Fo...



The ProMetal RCT, LLC 
2341 Alger 
Troy, MI 4883 
 

IDD & IFEC 

Legal Description 

 

 

T2N, R11E, SEC 26  

JACK ELWELL'S INDUSTRIAL PARK SUBDIVISION  

LOTS 5 & 6  

5-16-85 FROM 042 & 043 



Market Value 3,800,000 3,483,460 2,903,116 2,177,627 1,452,042 847,266 423,803 176,683 58,942 14,753 2,464 206 0
50% of Value 1,900,000 1,741,730 1,451,558 1,088,813 726,021 423,633 211,901 88,342 29,471 7,377 1,232 103 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 1,741,730 1,451,558 1,088,813 726,021 423,633 211,901 88,342 29,471 7,377 1,232 103 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59500 $1,036.33 $863.68 $647.84 $431.98 $252.06 $126.08 $52.56 $17.54 $4.39 $0.73 $0.06 $0.00
County 4.64610 $8,092.25 $6,744.08 $5,058.74 $3,373.17 $1,968.24 $984.51 $410.44 $136.92 $34.27 $5.72 $0.48 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $5,867.89 $4,890.30 $3,668.21 $2,445.96 $1,427.22 $713.90 $297.62 $99.29 $24.85 $4.15 $0.35 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $2,759.60 $2,299.85 $1,725.12 $1,150.31 $671.20 $335.74 $139.97 $46.69 $11.69 $1.95 $0.16 $0.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 5.28560 $9,206.09 $7,672.35 $5,755.03 $3,837.46 $2,239.16 $1,120.03 $466.94 $155.77 $38.99 $6.51 $0.54 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.13000 $7,193.34 $5,994.93 $4,496.80 $2,998.47 $1,749.60 $875.15 $364.85 $121.71 $30.47 $5.09 $0.43 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $667.26 $556.09 $417.12 $278.14 $162.29 $81.18 $33.84 $11.29 $2.83 $0.47 $0.04 $0.00
City 9.28000 $16,163.25 $13,470.46 $10,104.19 $6,737.47 $3,931.32 $1,966.44 $819.81 $273.49 $68.45 $11.43 $0.96 $0.00
Total 29.27320 $50,986.01 $42,491.74 $31,873.06 $21,252.95 $12,401.10 $6,203.03 $2,586.04 $862.70 $215.93 $36.06 $3.02 $0.00

Total 12 Years $168,911.65
Total City 12 Yr $53,547.28

50% Total 12 Yr $84,455.82
50% Total City 12 $26,773.64 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
The ProMetal RTC, LLC

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement Policy Resolution  06/05/06 
 
F-5   Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and                             
Headquarters Companies 
 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) 
reducing economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial 
areas, (e) encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in 
industrial areas, and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for 
certain industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Troy, that the 
following criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in 
the review of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial 
Development Districts (IDD) by the City Council: 

 
(1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 

improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to 
be abated; and 

 
(2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to 
be abated; and  

 
(3)   That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to 

prove by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in 
compliance with the basic guidelines established above. 

 
(4)    That the company provide documentation that they are Michigan Economic 

Growth Authority (MEGA) eligible, or are moving into existing vacant 
buildings, or are retaining or expanding their job base in Troy.   

 
 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting 
the aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by 
laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
Yes:       Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini 
No:        Howrylak 
Absent:  Broomfield, Stine 



08/15/08 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
The ProMetal RCT, LLC, 2341 Alger, Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between The ProMetal TCT, LLC, (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), The ProMetal TCT, LLC, understands that through its 
investment of $3,800,000 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2022, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2010, The ProMetal TCT, LLC will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) The ProMetal TCT, LLC, agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
The ProMetal TCT, LLC, further understands that if it chooses 
to leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior 
to the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City 
of Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  The ProMetal TCT, LLC, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  The ProMetal TCT, LLC, agrees that it will operate the 

Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, September 22, 2008 at 7:30 P.M. 

to consider the request from Tepel Brothers Printing Inc., for the establishment of an 

Industrial Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-479-040  1725 John R, Troy,  MI.  48083 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI  48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
PATRICK DOHANY 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
DORIS PEDERSEN 
2341 ALGER 
TROY MI 48083 

 
 

 
 

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  















CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  September 22, 2008 
 

- 2 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – The ProMetal RCT, 

LLC, 2341 Alger  
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner, Doris 
Pedersen. There was no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2008-09-286 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for The ProMetal RCT, LLC, for property known as 2341 Alger, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 
88-20-26-200-060, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to The ProMetal 

RCT, LLC, 2341 Alger  
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public as follows: 
Marvin Reinhardt - Opposed 
 
Resolution #2008-09-287 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 22, 2008 established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
2341 Alger, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel # 88-20-26-200-060;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by The ProMetal RCT, LLC, for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 2341 Alger, Troy, MI 48083, for 
twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on September 22, 
2008, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  September 22, 2008 
 

- 3 - 

possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for The 
ProMetal RCT, LLC, at 2341 Alger, Troy, MI 48083 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for The ProMetal RCT, LLC, at 2341 
Alger, Troy, MI 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or the 
other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or 
the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for The ProMetal RCT, LLC, Inc., at 2341 
Alger, Troy, MI 48083, Parcel #88-20-26-200-060, for personal property for a term of twelve 
(12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of 
Troy and The ProMetal RCT, LLC, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and The ProMetal RCT, 
LLC, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to 
complete the Application and transmit same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, 
P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-4 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – Faurecia Automotive 

Seating, 2350 Meijer 
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner, Mike 
Kamsickas. There was no public comment. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Eisenbacher from Participating in the 
Vote  
 
Resolution #2008-09-288 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES Council Member Eisenbacher from 
participating in the vote for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) – 
Faurecia Automotive Seating, 2350 Meijer in accordance with Section 4.7 – Organization and 
Rules of the Council (c) of the Troy City Charter. 
 

licarila
Text Box



88-IP-08-400-506 2009 Est. T.C.V. PROMETAL RCT, LLC
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 2341 ALGER
Map #: 88-20-26-200-060 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48083

<< 2009 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Bought Machinery &
During Equipment
2008 2,000,000*89%
2007 9,761*76%
2003 38,500*49%
Prior
Total 2,048,261
TCV-> 1,806,283

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements TBL
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 50
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= 2,048,261 TCV= 1,806,283 Assessed Value= 903,140

2009 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-400-506 = 1,806,283
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2008 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

4.40
2009 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

903,140 903,140
2009 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT

903,140 903,140 903,140 903,140 903,140 903,140



88-IP-08-400-506 2010 Est. T.C.V. PROMETAL RCT, LLC
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 2341 ALGER
Map #: 88-20-26-200-060 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48083

<< 2010 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Bought Machinery &
During Equipment
2009 555,462*89%
2008 2,000,000*76%
2007 9,761*67%
Prior
Total 2,565,223
TCV-> 2,020,901

Bought Leasehold
During Improvements
2009 67,051*91%
Prior
Total 67,051
TCV-> 61,016

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements 67,051 TBL 61,016
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 50
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= 2,632,274 TCV= 2,081,917 Assessed Value= 1,040,960

2010 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-400-506 = 2,081,917
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2009 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

903,140 903,140 903,140 903,140 -0.30
2010 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

137,820 277,690 -130,440 9,430
2010 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT

1,040,960 1,040,960 1,040,960 1,040,960 1,040,960 1,040,960



88-IP-08-400-506 2011 Est. T.C.V. PROMETAL RCT, LLC
Property Class: 952 Printed 10/20/2011 2341 ALGER
Map #: 88-20-26-200-060 CITY OF TROY TROY, MI 48083

<< 2011 Statement (Current Year Statement) >>

Bought Machinery & Office, Elec.
During Equipment Video & Test
2010 62,749*89%
2009 554,949*76% 7,792*64%
2008 2,000,000*67%
2007 9,761*60%
Prior
Total 2,627,459 7,792
TCV-> 1,823,465 4,987

Bought Leasehold
During Improvements
2009 67,051*80%
Prior
Total 67,051
TCV-> 53,641

Pages 3 to 4. Other Personal Property Claimed Value Depr Depr.Value
Section G. Other Assessable Personal Property 100
Section H. Assessable Tools 100
Section I. Qualified Personal Property 100
Section M. Leasehold Improvements 67,051 TBL 53,641
Section N. Buildings on Leased Land TBL
Section O. Rental Information 100

13. Idle Equipment TBL
14. Construction in Progress 50
15 & 16. Cable, Utility & Cellular Assets TBL

Total Cost New= 2,702,302 TCV= 1,882,093 Assessed Value= 941,050

2011 Est. T.C.V. 88-IP-08-400-506 = 1,882,093
Est. TCV/Total Floor Area = 0.00
2010 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Base for Cap C.P.I.

1,040,960 1,040,960 1,040,960 1,040,960 1.70
2011 New Eq. Adjustment Loss Additions Tax Adjustment Losses

99,910 27,920 -127,600 230
2011 Assessed MBOR S.E.V. Capped ->Taxable<- PRE/MBT

941,050 941,050 941,050 941,050 941,050 941,050



Value Contracted $3,800,000 $3,800,000 $3,800,000
Actual Value $2,048,261 $2,632,274 $2,702,302

    
Year 2009 2010 2011

    
Taxable Value $903,140 $1,040,960 $941,050

Taxes 2009 2009 2010 2010 2011 2011
100% of 
Millage Taxes

100% of 
Millage Taxes

100% of 
Millage Taxes

Trans 0.59000 $532.85 0.59000 $614.17 0.59000 $555.22
County 4.64610 $4,196.08 4.64610 $4,836.40 4.64610 $4,372.21

Zoo 0.10000 $90.31 0.10000 $104.10 0.10000 $94.11
Int Schools 3.36900 $3,042.68 3.36900 $3,506.99 3.36900 $3,170.40
Comm Coll 1.58440 $1,430.94 1.58440 $1,649.30 1.58440 $1,491.00

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00
School Op 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00 0.00000 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.10000 $3,702.87 4.70000 $4,892.51 4.10000 $3,858.31

Hold Harmless 4.66860 $4,216.40 5.03810 $5,244.46 4.66860 $4,393.39
Admin 0.14390 $129.96 0.14990 $156.03 0.14390 $135.41

City 9.28000 $8,381.14 9.40000 $9,785.02 10.19000 $9,589.30
Total 28.48200 $25,723.23 29.57750 $30,788.99 29.39200 $27,659.34

Tax Savings (50% 
of Total) $12,861.61 $15,394.49 $13,829.67

Total Taxes Owed $42,085.78

City of Troy - Assessing Department
ProMetal RCT, LLC

Estimate of Total Taxes, Tax Savings and Taxes Owed from Unfullfilled IFEC Abatement



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:          November 21, 2011                    
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
 
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Subject: Reconsideration and Substitution of Resolution Approving Industrial Facilities 

Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc., 1972 Meijer 
 
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
Sulzer Metco, Inc. received approval for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) from City 
Council on September 13, 2010.  The State Tax Commission (STC) was unable to process the 
application, a fact to which staff has just recently been advised. 
 
Since the time of submittal, and the present time, the STC has required an additional paragraph in the 
approving resolution.  This language is verification from the Assessor that the aggregate amount of 
tax abated Assessed Value (A/V) in the local unit does not exceed 5% of the total abated and 
unabated Assessed Value of the local unit (Troy’s abated property is less than 2 tenths of 1% of our 
total A/V). 
 
The new language shows up as the 4th “WHEREAS” in the substituted resolution, and is highlighted.. 
 
   
Recommendation: 
 
In order to complete the process of granting the tax abatement, City Council should Reconsider, and 
Substitute the resolution as presented. 
 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\Sulzer Metco\Memo Reconsider IFEC 11.21.11 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-09



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Jack Mannschreck from Big Beaver United Methodist Church gave the Invocation.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 

INSTALLATION CEREMONY:  Honorable Judge Michael Warren Administered the 
Oath of Office to the New Mayor and New City Council Members 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 14, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Daniels called the meeting to order at 7:47 PM. 
 

B. 1. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Janice Daniels 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
David Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

 

B. 2. INSTALLATION CEREMONY: 2011-2012 City Council Convenes: 
 
a) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Rules of Procedure for the City Council addresses the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem as 
follows: 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
 

The Mayor Pro Tem shall be elected by the Council from among its 
members, annually in November. 

 
Resolution #2011-11-249 
Moved by Tietz 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS Council Member McGinnis to serve as 
Mayor Pro Tem for the City Council of the City of Troy for a term scheduled to expire at 7:30 
PM on Monday, November 12, 2012. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Table Item B.2.b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure Until After the 
Recess 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

 
Resolution #2011-11-250 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Item B.2.b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure be TABLED until after the 
recess. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Bloomingdale, Bruce Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council Members. 
Brake, Dan Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council Members. 
Beck, Paul  Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council Members. 
Reinhardt, Marvin  Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council Members and 

spoke about other topics. 
Cruz, Tony Congratulated and spoke about Mayor Daniels. 
Burke, Thomas Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council Members. 
Staeger, Gerard Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council Members. 
Watts, Ray Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council Members. 
Yashinsky, Neil Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council. 
Murrish, Dale Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council and spoke 

about various topics. 
Peters, Richard Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council and spoke 

about various topics. 
Witt, Jack Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council. 
Savage, James Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council. 
Smith, Paul Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council. 
Ross, Michael T. Congratulated all of the City Council Members, existing and newly 

elected, and spoke promoting the family unit. 
Baksmi, Minesh Congratulated the newly elected Mayor and City Council, and 

requested support of the business community.  

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:29 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:48 PM. 
 
H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: Employee Retirement System Board of 
Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust 

 
b) City Council Appointments: City Council took no action on this Item. 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: Employee Retirement System Board of 

Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust  
 
b) City Council Nominations: Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree 

Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust; Southeastern Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG) 

 
Resolution #2011-11-251 
Moved by Henderson 
Seconded by Tietz 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits 
Plan and Trust 
Appointed by Council - City Council Representative 
  
Wade Fleming  City Council Representative Unexpired Term 04/15/2012 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) – City Council took no 
action on this Item. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Application Regarding Class C, SDM and Brewpub Liquor Licenses for Granite 

City 
 
(a) Transfer of Class C License, and Add Brew Pub License, Add SDM License, and 

Add Food Permit, and Add Outdoor Service Permit 
 
Resolution #2011-11-252 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : Granite City Restaurant Operations, Inc. 

Type of License Requested : 

Transfer Ownership of Escrowed 2011 Class C Licensed 
Business located at 38300 W. Ten Mile, Farmington Hills, MI  
48335, Oakland County, from Pizza Hut of America, Inc.; 
Transfer location & governmental unit to 699 W. Big Beaver, 
Troy, MI;  Add New Brew Pub License, Add SDM License, 
and Add Official Permit (Food), and Add New Outdoor 
Service Area. 

Located at : 699 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County 
MLCC Request # : 622397 

 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-11-253 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-11-253-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of October 17, 2011 
b) Special City Council Meeting of October 24, 2011 

 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 
 
J-5 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
Resolution #2011-11-253-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the NO PARKING 
restrictions on Donaldson from Square Lake to Cotswold on November 16, 2011, between the 
hours of 12:30 pm and 3:30 pm, March 15, 2012, between the hours of 12:30 pm and 3:30 pm 
and 5:30 pm and 8:30 pm,  March 16, 2012, between the hours of 7:00 pm and 9:00 pm,  and 
June 14, 2012, between the hours of 8:30 am and 11:00 am. 
 
J-6 Traffic Committee Recommendation and Minutes - October 19, 2011 

Change Existing YIELD Sign to STOP Sign – Northbound Demaret at Player 
 

Resolution #2011-11-253-J-6 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CHANGES the existing YIELD sign on northbound 
Demaret at Player to a STOP sign. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 
 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

 
Council Member Fleming submitted a referral to the City Manager requesting to schedule a 
Study Session on Monday, November 21, 2011 to discuss the status of the Transit Center. 
 
Council Member Fleming requests City Management place the following information on the City 
website:  City check register; City Staff salary and benefits; and City contracts, including labor 
contracts.  Also, Council Member Fleming requests that a recommendation be submitted to the 
State of Michigan to require all cities follow the same process. 
 

L-1  Referral Item Submitted by Mayor Daniels 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6M – 
Order of Business – Council Comments 
 
Resolution #2011-11-254 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6M Order of Business – Council Comments to take action on an item that does 
not appear on the Agenda. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

L-1  Referral Item Submitted by Mayor Daniels Regarding Troy Public Library Hours of 
Service 

 
Moved by Daniels 
Seconded by Henderson 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to reopen the Troy 
Public Library on Saturdays beginning on Saturday, December 3, 2011. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone Item L-1 Referral Item Submitted by Mayor Daniels 
Regarding Troy Public Library Hours of Service to the November 28, 2011 Regular City 
Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2011-11-255 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Item L-1 Referral Item Submitted by Mayor Daniels Regarding Troy Public 
Library Hours of Service be POSTPONED to the November 28, 2011 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater, Tietz 
No: Daniels 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Council Member Henderson suggested reconsideration of the Troy Daze Festival and that Tom 
Kaszubski be consulted regarding future ventures. 
 
Council Member Fleming announced the Troy-Clawson Republican Forum “Freedom to Work” 
or “Right to Work” Meeting at the Troy Community Center on Tuesday, November 15, 2011.  
The doors open at 6:30 PM, and the meeting will begin at 7:00 PM. 
 
Council Member McGinnis commended the large number of Letters of Appreciation on this 
Agenda, and she also pointed out the Troy Police Dept./VFW Post #4037 Holiday Food and 
Gift Drive detailed in the Somerset Gazette. 
 
Council Member Fleming commented on Item N-2a 2011 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service 
Report 
 
 
Vote to Postpone Item B.2.b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure 
 
Resolution #2011-11-256 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Daniels 
 
RESOLVED, That Item B.2.b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure be POSTPONED to the 
November 21, 2011 Regular City Council Meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Library Advisory Board-Final-June 9, 2011  
b) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-August 8, 2011 
c) Library Advisory Board-Final-September 8, 2011  
d) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-September 12, 2011 
e) Planning Commission-Final-September 13, 2011 
f) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-September 20, 2011  
g) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-September 20, 2011 
h) Traffic Committee-Final-September 21, 2011 
i) Library Advisory Board-Final-September 22, 2011  
j) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-October 10, 2011 
k) Planning Commission-Draft-October 11, 2011 
l) Planning Commission-Final-October 11, 2011  
m) Library Advisory Board-Final-October 20, 2011 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) 2011 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report  
b) Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) – 

Border Enforcement Security Task Force (B.E.S.T.) 
Noted and Filed 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Chief Roberts of the Madison Heights Police Department to 

Chief Mayer Thanking Sgt. Szuminski, Sgt. Harden, Officer Isham, Officer Clark and 
Officer Sinutko for Assistance  

b) Letter of Appreciation from Special Agent Jeffrey Frost of the United States Secret 
Service to Chief Mayer Thanking Officer LaForest and Officer Pizzorni  

c) Letter of Appreciation from Marie Hostetler to Chief Mayer Thanking Officer Allan  
d) Letter of Appreciation from Roxanne Garrish to Chief Mayer Thanking Sgt. Ostrowski, 

Officer Allan, PSA McPhail  
e) Letter of Appreciation from Stephanie Bergeron of Walsh College to Chief Mayer 

Thanking Lt. Redmond, Lt. Gordon, Sgt. Ostrowski, Sgt. Harden, Sgt. Nastasi, Officer 
Barton, Officer Browne, Officer Cascioli, Officer Fitzpatrick, Officer Isham, Officer Jones, 
Officer Satterfield, Officer Shuler, Officer Stansbury and Officer Zagacki  

f) Letter of Appreciation from Dan Heileman to Paul Evans  
g) Letter of Appreciation from Barb Vleko of Long Lake Meadows/Spring Meadows 

Homeowners Association to Gary Bowers  
h) Letter of Appreciation from Mary, Dave and Katie Michalak to Chief Nelson Thanking 

Firefighter J. Roberts and Firefighter Crawfis 
Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft November 14, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
Noted and Filed 

N-5  Notice of Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company Case No. U-
16756 

Noted and Filed 

N-6  Communication from Bill Rehanek - Billy Casper Golf  
 

N. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

O. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:45 PM. 
 
 

Mayor Janice Daniels 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
November 15, 2011                
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
   
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal Services – 

Municipal Parking Lots and Local Roads  
 
 
Background 
On November 1, 2011, bid proposals were received for ITB-COT 11-22, seasonal requirements of snow 
removal services with an option to renew for one (1) additional season.  Services were separated into five (5) 
proposal categories, A – municipal parking lots, B – public sidewalks, C – code enforcement tasks, D – the 
home chore program, and E – local roads, each to be evaluated and awarded by proposal.  231 vendors were 
notified of the solicitation by the City’s e-procurement website – www.mitn.info – Three (3) bid responses were 
received.  Because the City did not receive bids for proposals B, C and D, contracts for those services were re-
solicited under ITB-COT 11-24 and awarded separately. 
 
City staff is responsible for completing snow and ice control removal services to municipal owned properties 
and local roads.  However, due to staff reductions, departmental reorganization and City Council support of the 
24-hr snow and ice protocol, contracted services are needed to supplement City forces during snow events.   
 
Under Proposal E, snowplowing on local roads, contract pricing is set by the company(s) offering the lowest 
price for each piece of equipment, and all awarded vendors have agreed to meet this established contract 
pricing.  Additionally, due to the variability of weather and fluctuating equipment availability, many companies 
do not bid on snow removal services.  Therefore, the City hires additional contractors based upon the 
emergency power of the City Manager.  Pre-approval to extend contract prices to other contractors, after the 
successful bidders have been employed, could speed the snow removal process.  It is our recommendation 
that the contract be extended to other contractors, on an as needed basis, and impose the awarded hourly 
rates to these contractors at the time of a snow emergency. 
  
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding contracts for snow removal services under proposals A and E to the 
following low bidders: Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Inc of Clawson, MI for Proposal A: Municipal 
Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks; and DiPonio Contracting, Inc and Florence Cement Company 
of Shelby Township, MI for Proposal E: Snow Removal Services – Local Roads Emergency Basis, all at rates 
as contained in the bid tabulation opened November 1, 2011. 
 
Fund Availability  
Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Parks Division for contractual services and Streets Division 
for snow and ice control for local, major and county roads. 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - SnowRemovalSvcITB-COT11-22.doc 

http://www.mitn.info/�
BittnerA
Text Box
J-04a



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 11/1/2011 BID TABULATION
Date Reviewed -- 11/8/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

sl
VENDOR NAME:

Proposal (A):  City Owned Properties - Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks 

Item # Dedicated COST
Parking Lots 

1 5-10 Yd Capacity Truck w/Salting Capabilities Blank 90.00$           /Hr

2 Front End Loader - 5 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher Blank 120.00$        /Hr

3 Front End Loader - 3 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher Blank 120.00$        /Hr

4 Skid Steer with Snow Pusher Blank 100.00$        /Hr

5 Pickup with 8 ft Blade Blank 75.00$          /Hr

6 Truck with 10 ft Snowplow Blank 85.00$          /Hr

7 Parking Lot Salt Blank 65.00$          /Ton

Sidewalks:  
8 Utility Vehicle with 5' Snow Plow Blank 55.00$           /Hr

9 Utility Vehicle with Salt Spreader Blank 55.00$          /Hr

10 Utility Vehicle w/5' Snow Plow & Salt Spreader Blank 55.00$          /Hr

11 Utility Tractor Mounted Snow Blower Blank 55.00$          /Hr

12 Walk-Behind Snow Blower Blank 35.00$          /Hr

13 Snow Shovel and Operator Blank 35.00$          /Hr

14 Walk-Behind Salt Spreader with Operator Blank 35.00$          /Hr

15 Sidewalk Salt:  To be supplied by the City of Troy Blank Included 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSAL A: 980.00$         

Proposal (B):  City Owned Properties - Sidewalks (Various locations within the City of Troy) 

Sidewalk - Sidewalk - 
Item Deicing Deicing 

1 Less than One (1) inch or Icy Conditions No Bid 

2 Three (3) inches to Six (6) inches No Bid No Bid 

3 Greater than Six (6) inches No Bid No Bid 

Item 

1 Price for Snow / Ice Removal 

2 Price for Salting per each Service Call 

Proposal (D):  Snow Removal Services for the Home Chore Program 

Snow Removal Snow Removal 

Est # Per Service Call Per Service Call 

85 No Bid 

ITB-COT 11-22
Page 1 of 4

Salting 

Per Service Call 

Advanced Landscape &
Builders Supply Inc. 

Sidewalks - 
Plowing 

Salting 
Per Service Call 

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

Type of Equipment 

Description 

Description Cost Cost 

Sidewalks - 
Plowing 

Description 

Proposal (C):  Code Enforcement per Call Basis  

Snow Removal and/or Salting at Residential City of 
Troy Homes 



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 11/1/2011 BID TABULATION
Date Reviewed -- 11/8/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

# of Available # of Available
Pieces of Eq Pieces of Eq

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

Proposal A: Y/N
Date

Proposal B:  Y/N
Date

Can Meet 
Cannot Meet 

PAYMENT TERMS:  

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y/N 

EXCEPTIONS:  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:       Signed     Y/N

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y/N 

` Legal Status Y/N
Non-Collusion Y/N
Indemnification Y/N
Sole Proprietor Y/N

ATTEST:
Kurt Bovensiep 
Susan Riesterer 
Julie Hamilton 

Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Purchasing Director 

G:\Purchasing\Bid Tabs 11 - 12\ITB-COT 11-22 Snow Removal.xls

ITB-COT 11-22
Page 2 of 4

Net 30 

N

None 

Y

N/A 
Y
Y
Y

Y

Y
10/20/2011

N/A 

XX

Hourly Rate
Per Piece 

Hourly Rate
Per Piece

Advanced Landscape & 
Builders Supply Inc. 

     3 Yd Capacity 

Proposal (E):  Snow Removal Services - Local Roads Emergency Basis 

Type of Equipment 

INSURANCE: 

FORMS:  

SITE VISITS:

Road Grader with Minimum Size of 6 Wheels 

Truck with 10 ft Snowplow 

     Other Size 

     Other Size 

     Other Size 

     20,000 GVW Grader 

Front End Loader:  Minimum Size 3 Yards 
     5 Yd Capacity 

Pick up with 8 ft Blade 



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 11/1/2011 BID TABULATION
Date Reviewed -- 11/8/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

sl
VENDOR NAME:

Proposal (A):  City Owned Properties - Parking Lots, Building Entrances and Sidewalks 

Item # Dedicated COST # Dedicated COST 
Parking Lots 

1 5-10 Yd Capacity Truck w/Salting Capabilities No Bid No Bid

2 Front End Loader - 5 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher No Bid No Bid

3 Front End Loader - 3 yd Capacity w/Snow Pusher No Bid No Bid

4 Skid Steer with Snow Pusher No Bid No Bid

5 Pickup with 8 ft Blade No Bid No Bid

6 Truck with 10 ft Snowplow No Bid No Bid

7 Parking Lot Salt No Bid No Bid

Sidewalks:  
8 Utility Vehicle with 5' Snow Plow No Bid No Bid

9 Utility Vehicle with Salt Spreader No Bid No Bid

10 Utility Vehicle w/5' Snow Plow & Salt Spreader No Bid No Bid

11 Utility Tractor Mounted Snow Blower No Bid No Bid

12 Walk-Behind Snow Blower No Bid No Bid

13 Snow Shovel and Operator No Bid No Bid

14 Walk-Behind Salt Spreader with Operator No Bid No Bid

15 Sidewalk Salt:  To be supplied by the City of Troy Included Included 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSAL A: No Bid No Bid 

Proposal (B):  City Owned Properties - Sidewalks (Various locations within the City of Troy) 

Sidewalk - Sidewalk - 
Item Deicing Deicing 

1 Less than One (1) inch or Icy Conditions No Bid No Bid 

2 Three (3) inches to Six (6) inches No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 

3 Greater than Six (6) inches No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 

Item 

1 Price for Snow / Ice Removal 

2 Price for Salting per each Service Call 

Proposal (D):  Snow Removal Services for the Home Chore Program 

Snow Removal Snow Removal 

Est # Per Service Call Per Service Call 

85 No Bid No Bid 

Florence Cement Company DiPonio Contracting, Inc. 

Type of Equipment 

Sidewalks - Sidewalks - 
Plowing 

Proposal (C):  Code Enforcement per Call Basis  

Description Cost Cost 

Description Plowing 

No Bid No Bid 

No Bid No Bid 

No Bid No Bid 

Salting Salting 

Description Per Service Call Per Service Call 

Snow Removal and/or Salting at Residential City of 
Troy Homes 

ITB-COT 11-22
Page 3 of 4



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 11/1/2011 BID TABULATION
Date Reviewed -- 11/8/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

# of Available # of Available
Pieces of Eq Pieces of Eq

original bid=>
7 2

2

2

3

1

Proposal A: Y/N
Date

Proposal B:  Y/N
Date

Can Meet 
Cannot Meet 

PAYMENT TERMS:  

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y/N 

EXCEPTIONS:  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y/N 

` Legal Status Y/N
Non-Collusion Y/N
Indemnification Y/N
Sole Proprietor Y/N

PROPOSAL -- Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Services for the City of Troy with an Option to Renew
for One (1) Additional Season

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES RECOMMENDED BIDDERS

G:\Purchasing\Bid Tabs 11 - 12\ITB-COT 11-22 Snow Removal.xls

Proposal (E):  Snow Removal Services - Local Roads Emergency Basis 
Hourly Rate Hourly Rate

Type of Equipment Per Piece Per Piece

Front End Loader:  Minimum Size 3 Yards 
     5 Yd Capacity 

($185.00)

     3 Yd Capacity 

     Other Size 

     Other Size 

Pick up with 8 ft Blade 

Road Grader with Minimum Size of 6 Wheels 

     20,000 GVW Grader 

     Other Size 

Truck with 10 ft Snowplow 

SITE VISITS: N/A 

N/A 

INSURANCE: XX

30 Days

N

Y

Y

FORMS:  Y
Y
Y

N/A 

ITB-COT 11-22
Page 4 of 4

140.00$                    

No Bid

No Bid 

No Bid 

185.00$                    

No Bid

DiPonio Contracting, Inc. 

agreed to match low bidder

140.00$              

130.00$              

No Bid 

Florence Cement Company 

Y
N/A

Identified Proposal E as service
provided by Florence Cement only

No Bid 

No Bid

No Bid

N/A

No Bid 85.00$                      

Y

Y

Y
Y

100.00$              

N/A

XX

Blank

N

Blank



 
 
November 15, 2011 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidders- Snow Removal Services 
 Home Chore Program and Public Sidewalks 
  
Background 
On November 11, 2011, the City of Troy received bids for ITB-COT 11-24, seasonal requirements of snow 
removal services for municipal sidewalks (Proposal A), Code Enforcement tasks (Proposal B), and the Home 
Chore Program (Proposal C) with an option to renew for one (1) additional season.  224 vendors were notified 
of the solicitation through the City’s e-procurement website – www.mitn.info –Two (2) bid responses were 
received. 
 
City in-house staff previously performed the snow and ice removal service for municipal owned property 
sidewalks. These staff members will now assist in the major and local road snow and ice removal operations 
creating a need to contract for sidewalks. The Troy Home Chore Program assists qualified individuals with the 
removal of snow and ice from driveways and sidewalks. The Troy Home Chore Program exclusively uses 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for this service. The task of the Code Enforcement 
department during snow events is to ensure the public can safely access public sidewalks. After a snow event, 
the Code Enforcement department may require the use of a contractor to clear the snow and ice from 
noncompliant property and seek reimbursement for the required services from the property owner(s).  
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding the seasonal requirements of snow removal services for the City of 
Troy Home Chore Program and public sidewalks with an option to renew to the low total bidder, MVP 
Environmental, LLC of Troy as the primary contractor for all three (3) proposals, and Brantley Development 
LLC of Westland, as secondary contractor for code enforcement and the home chore program, to be used in 
the event the primary contractor is unable to provide the services as needed. The awards are contingent upon 
the recommended bidders’ submission of proper bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
Fund Availability 
Funds are budgeted and available in the Parks, Streets and Drains, Community Affairs, and Code 
Enforcement contractual service accounts. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets, and Drains 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 - SnowRemoval HC&Sidewalks ITB-COT 11-24-11.11.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
BittnerA
Text Box
J-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-24
Opening Date -- 11/11/2011 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Reviewed -- 11/11/11 SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES - HOME CHORE & SIDEWALKS

sl
VENDOR NAME:

Proposal (A):  City Owned Properties - Sidewalks (Various locations within the City of Troy) 

Sidewalk - Sidewalks - Sidewalk - Sidewalks - 
Item Deicing Plowing Deicing Plowing 

1 Less than One (1) inch or Icy Conditions $               .039/LF No Bid

2 Three (3) inches to Six (6) inches $               .039/LF $             .1205/LF

3 Greater than Six (6) inches $               .039/LF $             .1656/LF

Item 

1 Price for Snow / Ice Removal 
w/terms 63.70$                

2 Price for Salting per each Service Call 
w/terms 9.80$                  

Snow Removal Salting Snow Removal Salting 
Est # Per Call Per Call Per Call Per Call

85 $18.00 $4.00 18.00$                  5.00$                  

17.64$                  4.90$                  

Proposal A: Y/N Yes No
Date November 1, 3, 6, 2011

Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet 

PAYMENT TERMS:  Net 15 2% 10 days

ALL OR NONE AWARD Y/N N N

EXCEPTIONS:  Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE:  Y/N Y Y

` Legal Status Y/N Y Y
Non-Collusion Y/N Y Y
Indemnification Y/N Y Y
Sole Proprietor Y/N Y Y

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES RECOMMENDED BIDDERS
  Kurt Bovensiep
  Susan Riesterer
  Susan Leirstein

Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Purchasing Director 

G:\Purchasing\Bid Tabs 11 - 12\ITB-COT 11-24 Snow Removal - Rebid.xls

$                                       65.00/Hour

$                                 10.00/Call Out

Primary Secondary

INSURANCE: 

FORMS:  

SITE VISITS:

Description 

Description Cost

$                                           25.00/Hour

$                                     12.50/Call Out

MVP Environmental LLC Brantley Development LLC

with terms

Description 

Proposal (C):  Snow Removal Services for the Home Chore Program 

Proposal (B):  Code Enforcement per Call Basis  

Snow Removal and/or Salting at Residential City of 
Troy Homes 

Cost 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:              November 15, 2011               
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  
   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
 
Subject: Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 Funds 
 
 
Background 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current program year allocation 
sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th).    
 
The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing communities to protect funds 
from their two most recent program years to help comply with this regulation 
 
All unobligated 2009 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2011.  The City of Troy 
may protect unobligated 2009 funds from recapture for one additional year by requesting a waiver.  
A separate Waiver request form must be submitted for each 2009 line item to the Manager of the 
Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than December 1, 2011. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Council authorize to waive recapture of the Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) 2009 Funds.  We have not spent the 2009 funds as of this date in order to accumulate 
a large amount to be able to pay for the Flood Drain Improvement project in Section 36. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-05



BittnerA
Text Box
J-06







































BittnerA
Text Box
N-01a







ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  draft  OCTOBER 18, 2011 

1 
 

The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
     , in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Thomas Strat 
 
Absent 
      
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –      , 2011 
 
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, to approve the      , 2011 meeting minutes. 
 
Yes: All present 
Absent: Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  – No changes 
 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A.       
 
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED to       

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01b



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING  draft  OCTOBER 18, 2011 

2 
 

Yes:       
Absent: Clark 
 
MOTION       
 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS –       
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT –      . 
 
7. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS –       
 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at      p.m. 

 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
David Lambert, Chair 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
 
G:\BZA\Minutes\2011\Draft\2011 10 18 ZBA Minutes_Draft.doc 
 
 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING    OCTOBER 18, 2011 

1 
 

The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
October 18, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Kenneth Courtney  
William Fisher 
Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Thomas Strat 
 
Absent 
Glenn Clark 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 20, 2011 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Bartnik 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the September 20, 2011 meeting minutes. 
 
Yes: All present 
Absent: Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  – No changes 
 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, PASTOR SCOTT MORGAN, ZION CHRISTIAN 
CHURCH, 3668 LIVERNOIS – In order to conduct an outdoor special event (Fall 
Harvest Festival) on Monday, October 31, 2011, a variance from the requirement 
that hours of operation end no later than 8:00 p.m.  Applicant requests the event 
end at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
RESOLVED to grant the variance as requested. 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01c





BittnerA
Text Box
N-01d







  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY RETIREE HEALTH CARE PLAN 
ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
DECEMBER 31, 2010  

 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-02a



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan  
 

 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
   

 
Page  

 

Section   Number  

    

  -- Cover Letter 
    

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
  1-2 Executive Summary 
    

A   VALUATION RESULTS
  1 

2 
3 

Development of the Annual Required Contributions  
Determination of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability  
Comments 

    

B   RETIREE PREMIUM RATE DEVELOPMENT 
  1-4 Retiree Premium Rate Development 
    

C   SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PROVISIONS AND VALUATION DATA 
  1-3 

4 
5 
6 
7 

Summary of Benefits 
Asset Information as of December 31, 2010 
Active Member Demographic Data as of December 31, 2010 – General 
Active Member Demographic Data as of December 31, 2010 – Public Safety 
Retired Member Demographic Data as of December 31, 2010 

    

D   ACTUARIAL COST METHOD AND ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 
  1 

2-6 
7 
8 
9 

Valuation Methods 
Actuarial Assumptions 
Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Funding Progress 
Miscellaneous and Technical Assumptions 

    

Appendix A   OVERVIEW 
  1-2 GASB Background 
  3 OPEB Pre-Funding 

Appendix B    
  1-2 Glossary 
    
    
    
    

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
November 16, 2011 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Monica Irelan 
Assistant City Manager 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
 
Dear Ms. Irelan: 
 
Submitted in this report are the results of an Actuarial Valuation of the benefit values associated with the 
employer financed Other Postemployment Benefits provided by the City of Troy.  The date of the 
valuation was December 31, 2010, effective for the fiscal years beginning July 1, 2011 and July 1, 2012.  
This report was prepared at the request of the City of Troy. 
 
The actuarial calculations were prepared for purposes of complying with the requirements of Statements 
No. 43 and No. 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  The calculations reported 
herein have been made on a basis consistent with our understanding of these accounting standards.  
Determinations of the liability associated with the benefits described in this report for purposes other than 
satisfying the System’s financial reporting requirements may produce significantly different results.  This 
report may be provided to parties other than the City of Troy only in its entirety and only with the 
permission of the City of Troy. 
 
The valuation was based upon information, furnished by the City, concerning retiree health care benefits, 
individual members, and financial data.  Data was checked for internal consistency, but was not otherwise 
audited.  We are not responsible for the accuracy or completeness of the information provided. 
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this 
report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic 
or demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; increases or decreases 
expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these measurements (such as the end 
of an amortization period or additional cost or contribution requirements based on the plan’s funded 
status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 
 
To the best of our knowledge, this report is complete and accurate and was made in accordance with 
standards of practice promulgated by the Actuarial Standards Board of the American Academy of 
Actuaries. 

 



 

Ms. Monica Irelan 
November 16, 2011, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 
Randall J. Dziubek is a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries (MAAA) and meets the 
Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion herein. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Kenneth G. Alberts Randall J. Dziubek, ASA, MAAA    
 
KGA/RJD:bd 
 
C0449 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan -1- 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
Annual Required Contribution 
 
This report presents the annual expense required to be recognized by the plan sponsor for purposes of 

complying with the accounting requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

Statement No. 43. 

 

The Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011 is estimated to be 

$3,773,293 provided that the City intends to fully fund the OPEB.  Under GASB Statement No. 45, the 

annual OPEB cost required to be disclosed on the employer’s financial statements is equal to the ARC.  

Actual claims and premiums including the effect of the implicit rate subsidy paid on behalf of retirees, if 

paid from outside of plan assets, may be treated as employer contributions in relation to the ARC and 

also act to reduce the Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) described below under Additional OPEB Reporting 

Requirements.  The expected retiree health care claims and premium amounts paid during the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2011 are estimated to be $3,609,076.  These amounts reflect the employer portion of 

the retiree only premium rates and the implicit subsidy for retirees and covered spouses.   

 
For additional details, please see Section B of the report. 
 
 
Additional OPEB Reporting Requirements 
 
In addition to the ARC described above, employers will have to disclose a NOO.  The current NOO is 

the cumulative difference between annual OPEB cost (ARC plus amortization of the prior NOO) and 

annual employer contributions in relation to the ARC, accumulated with interest from the 

implementation of GASB Statement No. 43.  The NOO is zero as of the beginning of the fiscal year that 

GASB Statement No. 43 is implemented, unless the employer chooses to recognize a beginning balance.  

Since we believe that the ARC has been met since implementation, the NOO remains zero as of the 

valuation date.  The ARC and the NOO are strongly influenced by the employers’ commitment to pre-

funding future cash flows, i.e., the degree to which the City contributes amounts to the Retiree Health 

Care Program to meet the ARC.  

 

  



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan -2- 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (CONCLUDED) 
 
 
The requirements for determining the employer’s contributions in relation to the ARC are described in 

paragraph 13 g. of GASB Statement No. 45.  Additional information required to be disclosed in the 

employer’s financial statements is detailed in paragraphs 24 through 27 of GASB Statement No. 45. 

 
 
Liabilities and Assets 
 
Once again assuming full pre-funding, the present value of all benefits expected to be paid to current plan 

members as of December 31, 2010 is $100,605,886.  The actuarial accrued liability, which is the portion 

of the $100,605,886 attributable to service accrued by plan members as of December 31, 2010, is 

$89,951,855.  The assets currently set aside for GASB OPEB purposes as of December 31, 2010 are 

$60,360,264.  The OPEB liabilities are currently 67% funded. 

 

Based on a 2011 survey of over 1,600 Local Governments across the country conducted by Cobalt 

Community Research, 70% of the survey respondents had no assets set aside for retiree health benefits.  

Only 4% of the respondents had a funding ratio (assets divided by OPEB liability) of greater than 50%.   

The survey can be found at: 
 
http://www.cobaltcommunityresearch.org/images/stories/2011_HealthStrat/OPEB2011%20FINAL.pdf 
 
  
Future Results 
 
Employees recently hired by the City as well as all future hires, will receive contributions of 4% of salary 

that will go into a Retiree Health Savings Account which can be used to purchase health insurance 

through the City at retirement.  As current employees continue to terminate or retire and are replaced 

with new hires, there will be continued downward pressure on future Annual Required Contributions.      

 

http://www.cobaltcommunityresearch.org/images/stories/2011_HealthStrat/OPEB2011%20FINAL.pdf


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION A 
VALUATION RESULTS 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE ANNUAL REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION 
FOR THE OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  

 

  Normal Cost
Normal Retirement $  1,308,239
Early Retirement 0
Termination Benefits         34,854
Death-in-Service         35,166
Disability 74,227

  Total Normal Cost $  1,452,486

  Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liabilities $  2,320,807

      (Amortized over 28 years)

  Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for the
Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2011 $  3,773,293

   Projected Payroll for the Fiscal Year 
      Beginning July 1, 2011 $27,325,011

  Annual Required Contribution (ARC) as a  
Percentage of Projected Payroll 13.81%

   Projected Payroll for the Fiscal Year 
      Beginning June 30, 2012 $28,281,386

  Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for the
Fiscal Year beginning June 30, 2012 $  3,854,521

  Annual Required Contribution (ARC) as a  
Percentage of Projected Payroll 13.63%

Contributions for Annual Required Contribution

 

The results on this page are calculated under the assumption that a funding arrangement with 

contributions at least equal to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) will be followed.  The 

unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities were amortized as a level dollar amount. A 28-year amortization 

period for unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities was used.  Thirty years is the maximum period that 

complies with GASB requirements. 

  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan A-1 
 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan A-2 

DETERMINATION OF UNFUNDED ACTUARIAL ACCRUED LIABILITY 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 

  A.  Present Value of Future Benefits
  1.  Retirees and Beneficiaries $  57,019,870
  2.  Vested Terminated Members   0
  3.  Active Members   43,586,016
Total Present Value of Future Benefits $100,605,886

  B.  Present Value of Future Employer Normal Costs   10,654,031

  C. Actuarial Accrued Liability (A.-B.)   89,951,855

  D. Actuarial Value of Assets   60,360,264

  E. Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (C.-D.) $  29,591,591

  F. Funded Ratio (D./C.) 67.1%

 

 

The Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) is not booked as an expense all in one year and does not 

appear in the Employer’s Statement of Net Assets. Nevertheless, it is reported in the Notes to the Financial 

Statements and in the Required Supplementary Information.  These are information sections within the 

employer’s financial statements. 

 

 

 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan A-3 
 
 

COMMENTS 
 
COMMENT A: One of the key assumptions used in any valuation of the cost of postemployment 

benefits is the long-term rate of investment return on plan assets.  Higher assumed investment 

returns will result in a lower Annual Required Contribution (ARC).  Lower returns will result in a 

higher ARC. We have calculated the liability and the resulting ARC using an assumed investment 

return of 6.5%.  If the City chooses to pre-fund with contributions less than the ARC, the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires lowering the assumed investment 

return on assets to match expected return on the City’s general assets.  Lowering the assumed 

investment return would considerably increase the Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) that is disclosed 

on the employers’ financial statement. 

 

COMMENT B:  Based on the number of plan members as of this valuation, the plan sponsor is 

required by GASB to perform actuarial valuations at least biennially.  An annual actuarial 

valuation will re-compute the required contribution rate each year.  This will permit fluctuations 

and trends in experience to be reflected in the contribution rate on a regular basis.   

 
COMMENT C:  The computed Annual Required Contributions reflect amortization of the unfunded 

actuarial accrued liability as a level dollar over 28 years.  A shorter amortization period would 

result in a higher ARC.  The maximum time period permitted by the GASB Statement No. 45 is 30 

years.   

 
COMMENT D:   The amount of estimated claims and/or premiums paid by the employer on behalf 

of retirees including the effect of the implicit rate subsidy under GASB is $3,609,076 for fiscal 

year ending June 30, 2012 and $4,074,811 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2013. 

 
COMMENT E:  The primary reason for the decrease in the ARC since the previous valuation is 

changes to medical plan provisions such as deductibles and co-pays.  The effect of these plan 

changes was offset by the change in the method for amortizing unfunded liabilities from a level 

percent of pay basis to level dollar. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION B 
RETIREE PREMIUM RATE DEVELOPMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan B-1 
 
 

 
RETIREE PREMIUM RATE DEVELOPMENT 

 
 
Premium rates for the City of Troy were developed assuming everyone would choose the self-insured 

plan. 

 

The self-insured premium rates were developed separately for each class (pre-65 and post-65).  The rates 

were calculated by using actual paid claims and exposure data for the period of January 2008 to 

December 2010, adjusted for catastrophic claims, plus the load for administration, network access fees, 

and stop loss premiums.  The self-insured medical and prescription drug data was provided by the City.  

The medical data was analyzed for the pre-65 and post-65 participants separately since Medicare is 

available for the post-65 participants and has a significant impact on the claim experience.  Furthermore, 

since the prescription drug claims and the medical claims exhibit different trends and claim payment 

patterns, we analyzed these claims separately as well. 

 

Since different groups have benefits which differ significantly, group specific rates were developed as 

follows: Current retirees; AFSCME hired before 1/1/2004; AFSCME hired after 1/1/2004, MAP hired 

after 7/1/2005; Classified/Exempt hired before 1/2/2006 and TFSOA; TPOA, TCOA, MAP hired after 

7/1/2005, and Classified/Exempt hired after 1/2/2006. 

 

Age graded and sex distinct premiums are utilized in this valuation.  The premiums developed by the 

preceding process are appropriate for the unique age and sex distribution currently existing.  Over the 

future years covered by this valuation, the age and sex distribution will most likely change.  Therefore, 

our process “distributes” the average premium over all age/sex combinations and assigns a unique 

premium for each specific age/sex combination.   The age/sex specific premiums more accurately 

reflect the health care utilization and cost at that age.   

 

We have not “age graded” the dental or vision premium rates for this valuation, since dental and vision 

claims do not vary significantly by age.  For the retirees that are eligible, the dental premium used for 

this valuation is $34.78 for the first person and $36.34 for the second person.  The vision premium 

used in this valuation is $2.82 per person. 

 

  



 

 

RETIREE PREMIUM RATE DEVELOPMENT 
 
 
 

The tables below show the combined self-insured medical and prescription drug one-person monthly 

premiums at select ages.  The premium (or per capita costs) rates shown below reflect the use of age 

grading. 

 

Age
45 $   370.31 $   484.80
50   501.00   567.66
55   654.79   673.07
60   822.61   790.71

Age Male Female
65 $   552.05 $   508.36
70   636.78   572.60
75   706.94   627.39

Male Female
For Those Not Eligible for Medicare

For Those Eligible for Medicare

All Current Retirees

 
 
 
 
 

Age
45 $   407.03 $   532.87
50   550.67   623.95
55   719.72   739.81
60   904.17   869.11

Age Male Female
65 $   578.72 $   532.93
70   667.55   600.26
75   741.10   657.70

For Those Eligible for Medicare

Current Active AFSCME hired before 1/1/2004
For Those Not Eligible for Medicare

Male Female

 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan B-2 
 



 

 

 

RETIREE PREMIUM RATE DEVELOPMENT 
 

 

Age
45 $   373.96 $   489.57
50   505.93   573.25
55   661.24   679.69
60   830.71   798.49

Age Male Female
65 $   524.47 $   482.96
70   604.97   543.99
75   671.62   596.05

Current Active AFSCME hired after 1/1/2004 and 
MAP hired before 7/1/2005

For Those Not Eligible for Medicare
Male Female

For Those Eligible for Medicare

 
 

 

 

Age
45 $   297.48 $   389.45
50   402.46   456.01
55   526.01   540.69
60   660.82   635.19

Age Male Female
65 $   385.63 $   355.11
70   444.82   399.98
75   493.83   438.26

Current Active TFSOA and                      
Cl/Ex hired before 1/2/2006

For Those Not Eligible for Medicare

For Those Eligible for Medicare

FemaleMale

 

  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan B-3 
 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan B-4 

 

RETIREE PREMIUM RATE DEVELOPMENT 
 

Age
45 $   344.64 $   451.20
50   466.27   528.31
55   609.41   626.41
60   765.59   735.90

Age Male Female
65 $   446.44 $   411.11
70   514.97   463.06
75   571.70   507.37

For Those Eligible for Medicare

For Those Not Eligible for Medicare
Male Female

TPOA, TCOA, MAP hired after 7/1/2005, and Cl/Ex 
hired after 1/2/2006

 

 

Based on the guidance provided by GASB on issues related to Medicare Part D payments to State and 

Local Governments effective as of June 30, 2006, an employer should apply the measurement 

requirements of GASB Statement No. 45 to determine the actuarial accrued liabilities, the annual 

required contribution of the employer, and the annual OPEB cost without reduction for Retiree Drug 

Subsidy (RDS) payments.  Therefore the impact of the RDS that is part of the Medicare Prescription 

Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 is not reflected in this report. 

 

The undersigned is a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries (MAAA) and meets the 

Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to certify the per capita retiree health 

care rates shown above. 

 

 

John Mallows, FSA, MAAA 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION C 
SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PROVISIONS 
AND VALUATION DATA 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan C-1 
 

 
SUMMARY OF BENEFITS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 
PLAN PARTICIPANTS 
 

Employees, retirees, and spouses of the City of Troy who satisfy the following requirements are 
eligible to receive retiree health care coverage. 
 

HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM SUBSIDY   
 
Post-retirement health insurance premiums are subsidized by the City as follows: 
 
 T.C.O.A. – 4% per completed year, retired after July 1, 1994. 

T.P.O.A – 4% per complete year, retired after February 20, 1996. 
T.F.S.O.A – 4% per complete year, retired after January 1, 1999. 
AFSCME, Classified/Exempt, Clerical – $400/month or 4% per complete year, whichever is 
greater. 
Retirees from prior provisions – $400/month or 3% per complete year, whichever is greater. 

 
REGULAR RETIREMENT ELIGIBILITY 
 
 T.P.O.A., T.F.S.O.A., and T.C.O.A. members – 25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years 

of service.   
 
 AFSCME, Classified/Exempt, Clerical – Age 50 with 27 years of service; or age 55 with 25 

years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service. 
 
 There is no mandatory retirement age. 
 
 The City does not provide health insurance for the following employees when they retire.  

Instead they are eligible to participate in a Retiree Health Savings Account. 
   Classified/Exempt members hired after January 2, 2006 
   TFSOA members hired after July 1, 2006 
   AFSCME members hired after July 1, 2006 
   TPOA and TCOA members hired after July 1, 2011 
   Clerical members hired after February 18, 2008 
 
EARLY RETIREMENT ELIGIBILITY 
 
 Age 55 with 10 years of service.  Benefit commences immediately. 
 
DEFERRED RETIREMENT 
 

Members retiring under deferred retirement conditions are not eligible for retiree health care 
through the City. 

  



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan C-2 
 

 

SUMMARY OF BENEFITS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 
 

DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT ELIGIBILITY 
 
 No age or service requirement.  Benefit commences immediately.  Worker's compensation 

must be payable. 
 

NON-DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT ELIGIBILITY 
 
 5 years of service (10 years for Classified/Exempt employees hired after February 1996, and 

MAP employees hired after February 2005).  Benefit commences immediately. 
 
DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT ELIGIBILITY 
 
 No age or service requirement.  Benefit commences immediately. 
 
NON-DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT ELIGIBILITY 
 
 10-years service.  Benefit commences immediately. 
 
BENEFITS FOR SPOUSES OF RETIRED EMPLOYEES 

 
Spouses of living retirees are eligible for retiree health care coverage through the City.  Only the 
spouse named at time of retirement is eligible.  For retirees receiving a percentage (i.e., 3% or 4%) 
of their premium paid, the spouse receives an equal percentage of their premium paid.  For retirees 
receiving a $400 benefit, the spouse may use any amount that is above and beyond the cost of the 
retiree’s premium, but is not eligible for an additional $400. 
 
Surviving spouses of deceased retirees are eligible for retiree health care coverage through the City 
if the surviving spouse is receiving a survivor’s DB pension or is the spouse of a DC member.  The 
surviving spouse’s benefit amount is equal to a retiree’s one person coverage.   

 
NON-MEDICARE AND MEDICARE–ELIGIBLE PROVISIONS 
 

Member and spouse are required to enroll in Medicare Parts A & B.  Premium for Medicare Part 
B is the responsibility of the retiree or spouse. 

 
VISION COVERAGE 
 

Retirees/spouses enrolled in a medical plan that provides vision coverage are eligible for retiree 
vision coverage.   
 
For retirees/spouses receiving a percentage (i.e., 3% or 4%) of their premium paid, or $400 dollars 
whichever is greater, the vision coverage is included as part of the medical premium.   
 

  



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan C-3 
 

 

SUMMARY OF BENEFITS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 
 

DENTAL COVERAGE 
 

Certain T.C.O.A. members and their spouses are eligible for retiree dental coverage.   
 
Retiree dental coverage is paid by the City for these certain T.C.O.A retirees and their spouses at 
the rate of 4% per completed year of service. 

 
LIFE INSURANCE COVERAGE 
 

City paid life insurance coverage is not offered to retirees of the City of Troy. 
 

RETIREE OPT-OUT 
 

Retirees who opt not to participate in the City’s plan are not eligible for any payment in lieu of 
coverage.  Retirees that opt out of coverage are eligible to elect coverage at a later time. 

 
RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT 
 

Participating employees in the Retiree Health Savings Account contribute 2% of salary while 
working to their RHS account, the City contributes 4% of the employee’s salary to the account 
which is used for health insurance premiums, reimbursement, etc. when they retire.  Participating 
retirees are eligible to purchase retiree health insurance coverage through the City of Troy. 
 

 
This is a brief summary of the City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan provisions.  In the event that any 
description contained herein differs from the actual eligibility or benefit, the appropriate employee 
contract or governing document will prevail. 
  



 

 
 

ASSET INFORMATION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 

 

 

Cash 1,000,641$       
Accrued Interest 67,659              
Short Term 2,686,686         
U.S. Bonds 2,722,544         
Corporate Bonds 4,465,604         
Bond Mutual Fund 6,716,177         
Municipal Bonds 901,810            
Common Stock 21,413,189       
PFD Stock 833,112            
Stock Mutual Fund 19,552,842       

60,360,264$      
 
 
  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan C-4 
 



 

 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES 
ACTIVE MEMBER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 

Attained Total Valuation
Age 0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30 Plus No. Payroll

20-24 2  2  $       103,972
25-29 4  4  187,039            
30-34 8  7  3  18  986,973            
35-39 7  9  6  1  23  1,261,501         
40-44 7  5  9  5  1  27  1,738,357         
45-49 6  11  10  2  7  2  38  2,192,490         
50-54 2  10  15  5  15  5  5  57  3,839,883         
55-59 3  7  13  7  8  4  8  50  3,534,036         
60-64 1  3  4  1  1  1  11  806,827            

65 & Over 1  2  1  1  5  240,780            

Totals 40  53  62  22  32  12  14  235  $  14,891,858 

Years of Service to Valuation Date

 

 

While not used in the financial computations, the following group averages are computed and shown 

because of their general interest. 

 
Age: 48.1 years
Service: 13.6 years
Annual Pay: $63,370  

 
 
  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan C-5 
 



 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES 
ACTIVE MEMBER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 

Attained Total Valuation
Age 0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30 Plus No. Payroll

25-29 2  3  5  321,558$       
30-34 5  14  4  23  1,782,041 
35-39 1  5  10  16  1,346,330 
40-44 1  2  12  12  2  29  2,456,989 
45-49 1  3  11  1  16  1,328,130 
50-54 2  3  7  5  3  20  1,994,293 
55-59 1  2  3  10  16  1,375,275 
60-64 1  1  3  5  454,271  

Totals 10  27  27  20  23  7  16  130  11,058,887$  

Years of Service to Valuation Date

 
 
While not used in the financial computations, the following group averages are computed and shown 

because of their general interest. 

 

Age: 43.6 years
Service: 16.5 years
Annual Pay: $85,068  

 
  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan C-6 
 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan C-7 

 

RETIRED MEMBER DEMOGRAPHIC DATA AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 
 

General Retirees 
 

Attained Number of Retirees
Age Male Female Total

Under 55 8  2  10  
55-59 26  9  35  
60-64 29  21  50  

65 & Over 46  51  97  

Totals 109  83  192  

 
 
 

Public Safety Retirees 
 

Attained Number of Retirees
Age Male Female Total

Under 55 7  3  10  
55-59 23  0  23  
60-64 20  1  21  

65 & Over 17  1  18  

Totals 67  5  72  

 
 
 
 
Only retirees indicated as receiving health care are valued in this report and shown in the exhibits 

above. 

 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION D 
ACTUARIAL COST METHOD  
AND ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-1 
 

 
VALUATION METHODS 

 
 
Actuarial Cost Method.  Normal cost and the allocation of benefit values between service rendered 

before and after the valuation date was determined using an Individual Entry-Age Normal Actuarial 

Cost Method having the following characteristics: 

 

(i) the annual normal cost for each individual active member, payable from the date of 

employment to the date of retirement, is sufficient to accumulate the value of the member’s 

benefit at the time of retirement; 

 
(ii)  each annual normal cost is a constant percentage of the member’s year by year projected 

covered pay. 

 
Actuarial gains (losses), as they occur, reduce (increase) the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. 
 
 
Financing of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities.  Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities 

(UAAL) were amortized on a level dollar basis. The UAAL were determined using the funding value of 

assets and actuarial accrued liability calculated as of the valuation date. The UAAL amortization payment 

is the amount required to fully amortize the UAAL over a 28-year period beginning on the valuation date. 

This UAAL payment does not reflect any payments expected to be made between the valuation date and 

the fiscal year for which the contributions in this report have been calculated. 

 

The salary increase assumption used in this actuarial valuation projects annual salary increases of 3.5% 

plus a percentage based on an age-related scale to reflect merit, longevity and promotional salary increases. 

 

Rates of Investment Return under a fully funded arrangement.  6.5% per year, compounded annually, 

net of expenses.  This rate consists of a real rate of return of 3.0% a year plus a long-term rate of wage 

growth of 3.5% a year.  This assumption is used to equate the value of payments due at different points in 

time. 

 

The number of active members is assumed to remain constant in the future. 

 

  



 

 
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 

 

 
 

Rates of Salary Increase.  Employee salaries are estimated to increase between the date of hire and date 

of retirement.  Salary increases occur in recognition of (i) individual merit and seniority, (ii) inflation-

related depreciation of the purchasing power of salaries, and (iii) competition from other employers for 

personnel.  A schedule of long-term rates of increase in individual salaries used for the valuation follows 

for sample ages: 

Sample Ages Merit & Seniority
Base 

(Economic)
Increase 

Next Year
35 2.5% 3.5% 6.0%
40 2.2% 3.5% 5.7%
45 1.7% 3.5% 5.2%
50 1.2% 3.5% 4.7%
55 0.7% 3.5% 4.2%
60 0.2% 3.5% 3.7%
65 0.0% 3.5% 3.5%
Ref 30

% Increase in Salary at Sample Ages

 
 

Pay Projections.  Active member covered payroll was projected to increase 3.5% a year, for the purpose of 

determining the level percent of payroll contributions.  The rate of increase is consistent with the base rate 

of increase in salaries used to calculate actuarial present values. 

 

  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-2 
 



 

 
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 

 

The mortality table used to project the mortality experience is the RP-2000 Combined Healthy 

Mortality Table, for males and females. 80% of active member deaths are assumed to be non-duty 

deaths. 

Sample
Attained

Ages
50 0.21 % 0.17 % 30.80 33.59
55 0.36 0.27 26.18 28.91
60 0.67 0.51 21.74 24.38
65 1.27 0.97 17.61 20.12
70 2.22 1.67 13.88 16.23
75 3.78 2.81 10.57 12.74
80 6.44 4.59 7.75 9.68
Ref #506x1sb0yrs0Unisex

Women

Probability of 
Dying Next Year
Men Men

Future Life
Expectancy (years)

Women

#507x1sb0yrs0Unisex  

 

The table used to project disabled mortality experience is the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality 

Table, for males and females.  

 

 
  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-3 
 



 

 
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 

 

The rates of retirement used to measure the probability of eligible members retiring during the next 

year, were as follows: 

Retirement
Ages

43 35 % 40 %
44 25 40
45 20 40
46 15 40
47 15 40
48 15 40
49 15 35
50 15 % 35 % 15 20
51 10 25 25 15
52 5 20 30 15
53 5 15 100 15
54 5 15 15
55 5 15 15
56 5 15 15
57 5 15 25
58 5 25 100
59 5 30
60 5 100
61 5
62 30
63 10
64 10
65 100
Ref 39 23 23 46

Percent of Eligible Active Members 
Retiring within Next Year

& Exempt T.P.O.A.
T.F.S.O.A.

T.C.O.A.

Non-Exempt, General 
AFSCME, Clerical, 

and MAP

 
 

 

 
  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-4 
 



 

 

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 

 

Rates of separation from active membership are used to estimate the number of employees at each age 

that are expected to terminate employment before qualifying for retirement benefits.  The withdrawal 

rates do not apply to members eligible to retire, and do not include separation on account of death or 

disability. 

 
Sample rates of separation from active employment are shown below: 
 

 
 

Sample Years of
Ages Service

ALL 0 30.00 % 15.00 %

1 20.00 10.00

2 15.00 8.00

3 10.00 7.00

4 7.00 6.00

25 5 & Over 6.00 5.00

30 6.00 4.50

35 6.00 3.55

40 6.00 1.45

45 3.50 0.75

50 1.50 0.75

55 1.50 0.75

60 1.50 0.75

Ref 11 18 55

% of Active Members Separating 
Within Next Year

General Public Safety

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-5 
 



 

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS (CONCLUDED) 
 

Rates of disability among active members are used to estimate the incidence of member disability in 

future years.  80% of disabilities were assumed to be non-duty related. 

 

Sample
Ages
20 0.08 % 0.10 %
25 0.08 0.10
30 0.08 0.10
35 0.08 0.10
40 0.20 0.36
45 0.26 0.41
50 0.49 0.57
55 0.89 0.77
60 1.41 1.02
65 1.66 1.23
Ref #9x1 #10x1

Male Female

Percent Becoming Disabled
Within Next Year

 

 
 
Health care trend rates used in the valuation were as shown below. 

 

Year

2011 9.00 % 3.50 %
2012 8.25 3.50
2013 7.50 3.50
2014 6.75 3.50
2015 6.25 3.50
2016 5.75 3.50
2017 5.25 3.50
2018 4.75 3.50
2019 4.25 3.50

2020 & Later 3.50 3.50

Medical and 
Prescription Drugs and Vision

Dental

 

 
  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-6 
 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-7 
 

 
GASB STATEMENTS NO. 43 AND NO. 45 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 

  
Valuation Date December 31, 2010 
  
Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry Age Normal Cost 
  
Amortization Method  Level Dollar Closed 
  
Remaining Amortization Periods 28 Years 
  
Asset Valuation Method Market Value 
  
Actuarial Assumptions:  
  
 Discount Rate 6.5% Per Year 
  
 Projected Salary Increases 3.5% - 8.0% 
  

Valuation Health Care Cost Trend Rate 
          Medical and Prescription Drug 
          Dental and Vision 

 
9% in 2011, grading to 3.5% in 2020 

3.5% for all years 
  

 
 
 

This information is presented in draft form for review by the City’s auditor. Please let us know 
if there are any items that the auditor changes so that we may maintain consistency with the 
City’s financial statements. 

 
  



 

 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

 
 

Rounded to the Nearest $1,000 
 

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
December 31

2001 $  23,645 $  27,804 4,159$       85.0 % $26,847 15.5 %

2002 31,003 31,263 260 99.2 28,480 0.9

2003 32,815 37,000 4,186 88.7 31,790 13.2

2004 36,484 40,419 3,935 90.3 30,046 13.1

2005 37,190 43,554 6,364 85.4 29,937 21.3

2006* 43,983 78,901 34,918 55.7 31,038 112.5

2008 38,094 91,966 53,872 41.4 31,168 172.8

2010 60,360 89,952 29,592 67.1 25,951 114.0

Covered Payroll
Funded

Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll
Covered Active MemberValue of Liability Unfunded

(c) ((b-a)/c)(a) (b) (b)-(a) (a)/(b)

Unfunded AAL as
Actuarial Accrued Member a Percentage of

Actuarial Active

*  After adoption of OPEB compliant methods and assumptions. 
 
 
This information is presented in draft form for review by the City’s auditor. Please let us know 
if there are any items that the auditor changes so that we may maintain consistency with the 
City’s financial statements. 
 

 
 

 
  

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-8 
 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan D-9 
 

 
MISCELLANEOUS AND TECHNICAL ASSUMPTIONS 

 
  

Decrement Operation: Disability and mortality decrements do not operate during the first 
five years of service.  Disability and withdrawal also do not operate 
during retirement eligibility.  

  
Decrement Timing: Decrements of all types are assumed to occur mid-year. 
  
Eligibility Testing: Eligibility for benefits is determined based upon the age nearest 

birthday and exact fractional service on the date the decrement is 
assumed to occur. 

  
Marriage Assumption: 90% of males and 90% of females are assumed to be married for 

purposes of death-in-service benefits. Male spouses are assumed to 
be three years older than female spouses for active member 
valuation purposes. 

  
Medicare Coverage: Assumed to be available for all covered employees on attainment of 

age 65. 
  
Children: Children of active employees were assumed to not receive coverage 

upon retirement of the employee. 
  
Election Percentage: (General) It was assumed that 72% of retirees would choose to 

receive retiree health care benefits through the City.  Of those 
assumed to elect coverage, 50% of retirees assumed to elect two-
person coverage, if eligible.  For those that elect two-person 
coverage, it was assumed that coverage would continue to the 
spouse upon death of the retiree 50% of the time, if eligible. 

  
 (Public Safety) It was assumed that 85% of retirees would choose to 

receive retiree health care benefits through the City.  Of those 
assumed to elect coverage, 90% of retirees assumed to elect two-
person coverage, if eligible.  For those that elect two-person 
coverage, it was assumed that coverage would continue to the 
spouse upon death of the retiree 50% of the time, if eligible. 

  
Retiree Opt-Outs: Retirees and spouses who have opted out of coverage are assumed to 

not re-enroll. 
  
  
Adjustments: The actuarial accrued liability was increased by $2,000,000 which is 

an estimate of the impact of retirements that occurred or will occur 
during calendar year 2011 under an Early Retirement Incentive 
Program. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
OVERVIEW 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan -1- 
 

 

GASB BACKGROUND 

The purpose of this valuation is to provide information on the cost associated with providing 

postemployment benefits other than pensions, or OPEB, to current and former employees. The information 

is designed to assist you in complying with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

Statements No. 43 and No. 45.  OPEB benefits are most often associated with postemployment health care, 

but cover almost any benefit not provided through a pension plan, including life insurance, dental and 

vision benefits.  It is important to note that OPEB benefits, by definition, do not include benefits currently 

being provided to active employees – however, this report includes the liabilities for benefits expected to be 

paid to current active employees in the future when they retire. 

GASB Statements No. 43 and No. 45 were released in the spring of 2004.  GASB Statement No. 43 covers 

the accounting rules for OPEB plans while GASB Statement No. 45 describes the rules for employers 

sponsoring OPEB plans.  Your auditor can assist you in determining which statements apply to your 

particular situation. 

The specific items required to be disclosed on an OPEB sponsor’s financial statements are described in 

detail in GASB Statements No. 43 and No. 45.   

GASB Statement No. 45 

Among the requirements of Statement No. 45 are recognition each year of an expense called the Annual 

OPEB Cost, and the accumulation of a liability to be disclosed on the employer’s Statement of Net Assets 

called the Net OPEB Obligation (NOO).   

The fundamental items required to determine the Annual OPEB Cost and the NOO are: 

• the Annual Required Contribution (ARC)  

• the Employer’s Contributions in relation to the ARC 

Although GASB does not require OPEB contributions, it has chosen to call the base component of the 

annual OPEB cost the Annual Required Contribution.  The ARC is provided in this report. 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan -2- 
 

 

GASB BACKGROUND (CONCLUDED) 
 

Paragraph 13g. of Statement No. 45 states: 

  “An employer has made a contribution in relation to the ARC if the employer has: 

1. made payments of benefits directly to or on behalf of a retiree or beneficiary, 

2. made premium payments to an insurer, or 

3. irrevocably transferred assets to a trust, or equivalent arrangement in which Plan 

assets are dedicated to providing benefits to retirees and their beneficiaries in 

accordance with the terms of the Plan and are legally protected from creditors of the 

employer(s) or plan administrator.” 

For each fiscal year shown in this report, we have provided the ARC and the estimated benefits and/or 

premiums (based on valuation assumptions). 

The NOO is the cumulative difference between the Annual OPEB Cost each year and the Employer’s 

Contribution in relation to the ARC.  The Annual OPEB Cost for a year is equal to: 

• the ARC, plus  

• interest on the prior year’s NOO, plus 

• amortization of the prior year’s NOO. 

The Annual OPEB Cost and NOO are generally developed by the Plan Sponsor’s auditor based on 

information contained herein and elsewhere. 

GASB Statement No. 43 

If the Plan has assets for Statement No. 43 purposes, then certain additional information useful in 

complying with the Statement is contained in this report.   



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan -2- 
 

OPEB PRE-FUNDING 
 

Many employers fund retiree health care benefits using the pay-as-you-go (or cash disbursement) method.  

Under this method, the employer’s annual contribution is equal to the actual disbursements during the year 

for OPEB for retired employees.  This method of funding will result in increasing contributions over time.  

First, per capita cash disbursements will tend to increase from year to year as the cost of health care 

services, or the utilization of these services, increases.  Second, the number of retired members is likely to 

increase for years to come.  The more retirees, the greater the disbursements as a percentage of employee 

payroll. 

A retiree health care plan is similar to a defined benefit pension plan in that promises are made to 

employees to provide them with a benefit payable at some future date.  For defined benefit pension plan 

sponsors, a common funding objective is to contribute to a fund, annual amounts which will i) remain level 

as a percentage of active member payroll, and ii) when combined with present assets and future investment 

return be sufficient to meet the financial obligations of the Plan to current and future retirees. 

The GASB statements are not funding requirements.  They are accounting standards that require plan 

sponsors to calculate the annual expense associated with OPEB using certain methods.   

The ultimate determination as to the level of pre-funding will be the result of decisions made in an attempt 

to support benefit security for members and the fiscal management needs of the employer. 

  

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

APPENDIX B 
GLOSSARY  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan -1- 
 

 
GLOSSARY 

 
 
Accrued Service - The service credited under the plan which was rendered before the date of the actuarial 

valuation. 

 
Actuarial Accrued Liability - The difference between (i) the actuarial present value of future plan 

benefits, and (ii) the actuarial present value of future normal cost.  Sometimes referred to as "accrued 

liability" or "past service liability." 

 
Actuarial Assumptions - Estimates of future plan experience with respect to rates of mortality, disability, 

turnover, retirement, rate or rates of investment income and salary increases.  Decrement assumptions 

(rates of mortality, disability, turnover and retirement) are generally based on past experience, often 

modified for projected changes in conditions.  Economic assumptions (salary increases and investment 

income) consist of an underlying rate in an inflation-free environment plus a provision for a long-term 

average rate of inflation. 

 
Actuarial Cost Method - A mathematical budgeting procedure for allocating the dollar amount of the 

"actuarial present value of future plan benefits" between the actuarial present value of future normal cost 

and the actuarial accrued liability.  Sometimes referred to as the "actuarial funding method." 

 
Actuarial Equivalent - A single amount or series of amounts of equal value to another single amount or 

series of amounts, computed on the basis of the rate(s) of interest and mortality tables used by the plan. 

 
Actuarial Present Value - The amount of funds presently required to provide a payment or series of 

payments in the future.  It is determined by discounting the future payments at a predetermined rate of 

interest, taking into account the probability of payment. 
 
Amortization - Paying off an interest-bearing liability by means of periodic payments of interest and 

principal, as opposed to paying it off with a lump sum payment. 



 

City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan -2- 
 

 
GLOSSARY (CONCLUDED) 

 
 
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) - The ARC is the normal cost plus the portion of the unfunded 

actuarial accrued liability to be amortized in the current period.  The ARC is an amount that is actuarially 

determined in accordance with the requirements so that, if paid on an ongoing basis, it would be expected 

to provide sufficient resources to fund both the normal cost for each year and the amortized unfunded 

liability. 

 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) - GASB is the private, nonpartisan, nonprofit 

organization that works to create and improve the rules U.S. state and local governments follow when 

accounting for their finances and reporting them to the public. 

 
Medical Trend Rate (Health Care Inflation) - The increase in the cost of providing health care benefits 

over time.  Trend includes such elements as pure price inflation, changes in utilization, advances in 

medical technology, and cost shifting. 

 
Normal Cost - The annual cost assigned, under the actuarial funding method, to current and subsequent 

plan years.  Sometimes referred to as "current service cost."  Any payment toward the unfunded actuarial 

accrued liability is not part of the normal cost. 

 
Other Postemployment Employee Benefits (OPEB) - OPEB are postemployment benefits other than 

pensions.  OPEB generally takes the form of health insurance and dental, vision, prescription drugs or 

other health care benefits. 

 
Reserve Account - An account used to indicate that funds have been set aside for a specific purpose and 

is not generally available for other uses. 

 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability - The difference between the actuarial accrued liability and 

valuation assets.  Sometimes referred to as "unfunded accrued liability." 
 
Valuation Assets - The value of current plan assets recognized for valuation purposes. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 16, 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Monica Irelan 
Assistant City Manager 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
 
Re: City of Troy Other Postemployment Benefits Valuation 
 
Dear Ms. Irelan: 
 
Enclosed are 25 copies of our report of the actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2010 
of the City of Troy Other Postemployment Benefits. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Randall J. Dziubek 
 
RJD:bd 
Enclosures 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C I T Y  O F  T R O Y  E M P L O Y E E S  R E T I R E M E N T  S Y S T E M  
F O R T Y - S E V E N T H  A N N U A L  A C T U A R I A L  V A L U A T I O N   

D E C E M B E R  3 1 ,  2 0 1 0   
 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-02b



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  
 

 
 

OUTLINE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Page Items 

 
-- 

 
Cover Letter 
 

 
A-1 
A-2 
A-3 
A-4 

 

Valuation Results, Comments and Conclusion 
Computed City contributions 
Computed City contributions – comparative statement 
Comments and conclusion 
Derivation of actuarial gain (loss) 
 

 
 

B-1 
B-3 
B-9 
B-13 
B-14 

Summary of Benefit Provisions and Valuation Data Submitted by the 
Retirement System 
Summary of benefit provisions 
Reported asset information 
Retired life data 
Vested terminated member data 
Active member data 
 

 
 

C-1 
C-4 
C-5 
C-6 
C-9 
C-15 

Financial Principles, Actuarial Valuation Process, Actuarial Cost 
Methods, Actuarial Assumptions and Definitions of Technical Terms 
Financial principles 
Actuarial valuation process 
Actuarial cost methods 
Actuarial assumptions in the valuation process 
Actuarial assumptions used for the valuation 
Definitions of technical terms 
 

 
 

D-1 
D-2 
D-3 

Certain Disclosures Required by Statements No. 25 and No. 27 of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Actuarial accrued liability 
Schedule of funding progress 
Supplementary information 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
October 25, 2011 
 
 
 
 
The Board of Trustees 
City of Troy Employees Retirement System 
Troy, Michigan 
 
Submitted in this report are the results of the 47th Annual Actuarial Valuation of the assets, benefit 
values, reserves and contribution requirements associated with payments provided by the City of 
Troy Employees Retirement System.  The valuation was based upon data, furnished by your staff, 
concerning financial operations and individual participants and vested former participants.  We 
checked for internal and year-to-year consistency, but did not otherwise audit the data.  We are not 
responsible for the accuracy or completeness of the information. 
 
The purpose of the valuation is to measure the System’s funding progress, to determine the employer 
contribution rate for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, and to determine the actuarial information 
for Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 25 and No. 27.  The date of 
the valuation was December 31, 2010. 
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in 
this report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the 
economic or demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; increases 
or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these 
measurements (such as the end of an amortization period or additional cost or contribution 
requirements based on the plan’s funded status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 
 
This report was prepared by actuaries who have substantial experience valuing public employee 
retirement plans.  To the best of our knowledge, this report is complete and accurate and the 
valuation was conducted in accordance with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial 
Standards Board.   
 
The undersigned actuaries submitting this report are Members of the American Academy of 
Actuaries (where indicated with the designation of M.A.A.A.) and meet the Qualification Standards 
of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions contained herein. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brad Lee Armstrong, Randall J. Dziubek,    Kenneth G. Alberts 
A.S.A., E.A., M.A.A.A. A.S.A., E.A., M.A.A.A. 
BLA:RJD:bd

C0449 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION A 
VALUATION RESULTS,  COMMENTS AND 
CONCLUSION 
 
 

 
 



 
 

COMPUTED CITY CONTRIBUTIONS 
OF THE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2011 

 
 

1. Actuarial Present Value of All Future Benefits*: 
       - Active $          61,231,662 
       - Terminated Vested $               951,004 
       - Retired $          88,664,507 
       - Total $        150,847,173 

2. Funding Value of Assets $        133,400,223 

3. Actuarial Present Value of Future
    Employee Contributions $            1,920,579 

4. City's Remaining Unfunded Present Value of Benefits
    After Recognition of Funding Value of Assets and
    Future Employee Contributions
   (1) - (2) - (3) $          15,526,371 

5. Actuarial Present Value of Future Salary $          60,148,776 

6. Projected Payroll 1/1/2011 - 12/31/2011# $            8,098,572 

7. City's Annual Normal Cost 
   (4) / (5) * (6) Plus Interest at 6.5% for 6 Months $            2,157,379 

 
 
 
* An actuarial present value is the present day value of a payment or series of payments that may become payable in the 

future.  To determine an actuarial present value you need to use assumptions for the probability a payment will be paid, in 

what amount, and when.  The probability the payment will be paid is determined by the eligibility provisions and the 

demographic assumptions for rates of withdrawal, disability, death, and retirement. The amount is determined by the 

benefit formula and assumptions for salary increases.  The “when” determines how long an investment today would earn 

investment return before it needs to be paid.   For example, if the probability of $1,000 being paid in 10 years is 75% and 

assumed investment return is 6.5%/year, the actuarial present value is $1,000 x 75% / (1.065)10 = $400. 

 

# Projected payroll reflects only those active employees covered by the closed Retirement System. This amount is expected 

to decline in the future until all active employees have terminated/retired, at which point it will be $0. Note, the 

relationship between computed City contributions and payroll will become less and less meaningful each year. 

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  A-1 
 



COMPUTED CITY PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT 

 
Fiscal Year
Beginning Valuation

July 1 Payroll

1985 1984 * 13.49 % 19.23 % 10,518,429$        
1986 1985 13.29 18.75 11,373,793
1987 1986 11.42 17.59 12,048,592
1987 1986 * 13.67 17.59 12,048,592
1988 1987 12.00 14.76 13,083,451

1988 1987 * 14.91 16.34 13,083,451
1989 1988 14.69 15.98 14,162,413
1990 1989 12.93 13.72 14,774,001
1990 1989 * 13.11 19.39 14,774,001
1991 1990 13.09 19.44 16,105,129

1991 1990 * 13.09 22.99 16,105,129
1992 1991 11.65 21.21 17,323,677
1993 1992 10.02 17.82 17,619,701
1994 1993 7.64 15.07 18,518,880
1994 1993 * 9.24 20.09 18,518,880

1995 1994 8.00 18.62 17,598,618
1996 1995 * 7.23 16.23 19,039,969
1997 1996 3.66 13.40 20,535,959
1998 1997 0.00 9.15 16,133,023
1998 1997 * 0.00 10.99 16,133,023

1999 1998 3.73 0.04 16,201,219
1999 1998 * 4.30 0.04 16,201,219
1999 1999 0.00 0.00 15,056,554
1999 1999 * 0.05 0.00 15,056,554
2000 2000 0.00 0.00 15,441,200

2000 2000 *@ 0.00 0.00 15,441,200
2001 2001 0.00 0.00 14,566,460
2001 2001 * 0.00 0.00 14,566,460
2002 2002 1.69 0.00 13,552,549
2003 2003 1.87 0.00 13,052,713

2004 2004 3.64 0.00 12,572,374
2005 2005 4.97 0.00 12,099,631
2006 2006 * 1.79 1.79 11,471,511
2007 2007 * 4.10 4.10 11,045,745
2008 2008 13.57 13.57 10,953,297
2009 2009 26.62 26.62 10,483,020
2010 2010 27.16 27.16 8,959,340

Public Safety
% of Payroll Contributions

Valuation
Date

December 31 General

 
 

 * After changes in benefit provisions/cost method/actuarial assumptions. 
 

 @ After change in asset valuation method. 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  A-2 
 



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  A-3 
 

 
 

COMMENTS AND CONCLUSION 

 
COMMENT A:  For the plan year ended December 31, 2010, the System generated a $1,861,868 experience 

gain.  This gain is primarily the result of a larger actuarial gain due to reported pays being lower than 

expected based on last year’s reported pays.  The majority of individuals experienced a pay decrease from 

the prior year.  The actuarial gains related to pays were offset by investment losses due to continued 

recognition of calendar year 2008 investment performance.  Based on the method adopted by the Board used 

to determine the funding value of assets, and past investment experience, the expected future recognition of 

investment gains and losses is expected to put upward pressure on required contributions over the next two 

years, and downward pressure on required contributions for the following two years (absent additional 

investment gains or losses over that period).  We recommend the Board review this method and combine the 

unrecognized investment performance for the four year period ending December 31, 2010.  This will 

moderate expected contribution changes over the next four years if actual experience during that time is 

close to what is being assumed. An illustration of these proposed changes is included on page B-5.   

 
COMMENT B:  The required City contribution has decreased from last year primarily due to favorable 

experience regarding pays of active members (as discussed in Comment A above).  The current actuarial cost 

method used to determine required City contributions, recognizes the actuarial gains generated from this 

favorable pay experience over the expected future salaries of active employees. 

 
COMMENT C:  There have been a significant number of retirements after the valuation date in connection 

with Early Retirement Incentive Programs (ERIP).   The city has studied the overall affect of the ERIP over 

the next 5 years and has forecasted that it will result in an overall cost savings to the City.  GRS has reviewed 

the City’s methodology and agrees with it (see letter dated 8/18/2011).    Therefore, although the present 

value of benefits are anticipated to increase as a result of the ERIP based on our prior analyses focusing 

primarily on the Retirement System, the payroll and fringe benefit savings must be considered in any future 

assessments of the overall impact of the ERIP on the City’s finances. 

 

CONCLUSION:  It is the actuary’s opinion that the required contribution rate determined by the most recent 

actuarial valuation is sufficient to meet the Retirement System’s funding objective.  In addition, to ensure 

that the Retirement System maintains the ability to pay retiree benefits when due, and to reduce the 

likelihood of future required contribution amounts increasing from the current level, continued timely receipt 

of annual computed contributions is essential. 



 

 
        DERIVATION OF ACTUARIAL GAIN (LOSS) 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 
 
The actuarial gains or losses realized in the operation of the Retirement System provide an experience test.  

Gains and losses are expected to cancel each other over a period of years (in the absence of double-digit 

inflation) and sizable year to year fluctuations are common.  Detail on the derivation of the actuarial gain 

(loss) is shown below, along with a year by year comparative schedule. 
 
 

(1) UPVFB* at start of year 18,497,046$        

(2) Employer and employee contributions 2,238,368

(3) Estimated reserve transfers 0

(4) Interest accrual 1,129,561

(5) Expected UPVFB before changes:

(1) - (2) + (3) + (4) 17,388,239

(6) Change from revised benefit provisions 0

(7) Change from revised actuarial assumptions 0

(8) Expected UPVFB after changes:

(5) + (6) + (7) 17,388,239

(9) Actual UPVFB at end of year 15,526,371

(10) Gain (loss):  (8) - (9) 1,861,868$          

(11) Gain (loss) as percent of present value of
future benefit at start of year 1.2%  

 

* Unfunded Present Value of Future Benefits.  This is the present value of future benefits less the actuarial        
value of assets. 

 
 

Valuation
Date

December 31

2001 3.3                            %
2002 (3.2)
2003 1.6
2004 (3.7)
2005 (0.7)

2006 (0.6)                           
2007 0.3                            
2008 (5.2)                           
2009 (6.0)                           
2010 1.2                            

Actuarial Gain (Loss)
As % of Beginning UPVFB*

 
 
* Prior to 2007 this exhibit shows Actuarial Gain (Loss) as a % of Beginning Actuarial Accrued Liabilities. 

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  A-4 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION B 
SUMMARY OF BENEFIT PROVISIONS AND 
VALUATION DATA SUBMITTED BY THE 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 
 

 
 
 



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-1 
 

BENEFIT PROVISIONS EVALUATED AND/OR CONSIDERED 
(DECEMBER 31, 2010) 

 
REGULAR RETIREMENT (no reduction factor for age): 
 
 Eligibility - T.P.O.A., T.F.S.O.A. and T.C.O.A. members:  25 years of service; or age 60 with 

10 years of service.  General AFSCME, General Clerical Members, Classified or Exempt:  Age 
50 with 27 years of service; or age 55 with 25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of 
service. 

 
 Mandatory Retirement Age - None. 
 
 Annual Amount  
 

Division Benefit Supplemental Benefit 
   
T.P.O.A. 2.80% * FAC to 25 years  
 1.00% * FAC 26-30 years  
T.C.O.A. 2.80% * FAC to 25 years  
 1.00% * FAC 26-30 years  
T.F.S.O.A. 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General AFSCME  2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General Classified/Exempt 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General Clerical 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 

 
 
 Type of Final Average Compensation - Highest 3 years out of last 10.  Some lump sums are 

included but payment of sick or vacation leave is not included. 
 
EARLY RETIREMENT (AGE REDUCTION FACTOR USED): 
 
 Eligibility - Age 55 with 10 years of service. 
 
 Annual Amount - Computed as regular retirement benefit but reduced by 1/2% for each month 

by which retirement precedes age 60. 
 
DEFERRED RETIREMENT (vested benefits): 
 
 Eligibility - 10 years of service.  Benefit payable at age 60. 
 
 Annual Amount - Same as regular retirement but based on credited service and final average 

compensation at termination. 
 
DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT: 
 
 Eligibility - No age or service requirement.  Worker's compensation must be payable. 
 
 Annual Amount - Same as regular retirement.  Upon termination of worker's compensation the 

benefit is recomputed to grant service credit for the period in receipt of worker's compensation.  
Minimum benefit is based on 10 years of credited service (66-2/3% of final average 
compensation for non-command/exempt public safety members, while in receipt of worker's 
compensation). 

 



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-2 
 

 
NON-DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT: 
 

 Eligibility - 5 years of service (10 years for Exempt and Classified, AFSCME employees hired 
after 2/96). 

 
 Annual Amount - Same as regular retirement, but with a minimum benefit based on 10 years of 

credited service. 
 
DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT: 
 

 Eligibility - No age or service requirement. 
 
 Annual Amount - Widow's benefit equal to regular retirement benefit actuarially reduced in 

accordance with a 100% joint and survivor election. Minimum benefit is 25% (50% for 
T.F.S.O.A., Command Officers and T.P.O.A.) of final average compensation.  If no widow, 
children under 18 share equally in 25% (50% for Command Officers and T.P.O.A.) of final 
average compensation. 

 
NON-DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT: 
 

 Eligibility - 10 years service. 
 

 Annual Amount - Same as regular retirement but reduced in accordance with a 100% joint and 
survivor election. 

 
AUTOMATIC DEATH BENEFIT AFTER RETIREMENT:  NONE. 
 
POST-RETIREMENT ADJUSTMENTS:  One-time increases were granted in 1973, 1977, 1978, 1981, 1983, 
1989 and 1999. 
 
HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM SUBSIDY:  Post-retirement health insurance premiums are subsidized by 
the City as follows: 
 

 T.C.O.A. - Fully paid after 7/1/94. 
T.P.O.A. - 4% per complete year, retired after 2/20/1996. 
T.F.S.O.A.- 4% per complete year, retired after 1/1/99. 
AFSCME - 4% per complete year, retired after 1/1/01. 
Classified Exempt, Clerical  - $400/month or 4% per complete year, whichever is greater. 
Retirees from prior provisions - $400/month or 3% per complete year, whichever is greater. 

   
MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS:  Expressed as percentages of compensation as follows: 
 

 1.5% for clerical members 
 3.0% for T.F.S.O.A. 
 1.5% for classified and Exempt members 
 1.5% for AFSCME 
 4.0% for T.P.O.A. 
 4.0% for T.C.O.A. 
 

  



 

REPORTED FUND BALANCE (MARKET VALUE) 
 

Reserves 2010

Reserve for Employees' Contributions $    3,446,321 $    3,332,743
Reserve for Employer Contributions 96,935,023 86,254,937
Reserve for Retired Benefit Payments 34,009,886 31,243,483
Reserve for Undistributed Investment Income 0 0
Reserve for Health Insurance Premiums 38,669,579 38,319,430

Total Fund Balance $173,060,809 $159,150,593

2009
Reported Fund Balance December 31,

 
 
 
 

Valuation assets are equal to reported market value of assets (excluding health reserves), except that all realized and 
unrealized gains and losses are spread over a period of years, with 20% recognition the first year.  Such spreading 
reduces the fluctuation in the City's computed contribution rate which might otherwise be caused by market value 
fluctuations.  The details of the spreading technique are shown on page B-4.  The valuation assets as of December 31, 
2010 total $133,400,223. 
 
 
 
In financing actuarial accrued liabilities, valuation assets of $133,400,223 were distributed as follows: 
 

Active Retirants & Contingency
Reserves for Members Beneficiaries Reserve Totals

  Employees' Contributions $    3,446,321 $     3,446,321

  Employer Contributions 96,935,023 96,935,023

  Retired Benefit Payments $ 34,009,886 34,009,886

  Valuation Asset Adjustment (991,007) (991,007)

  Totals $99,390,337 $ 34,009,886 $133,400,223

Valuation Assets Applied to
Actuarial Accrued Liabilities for

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-3 
 



 
 

DERIVATION OF VALUATION ASSETS 
MARKET VALUE WITH 20% RECOGNITION OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN 

THE MARKET RATE OF RETURN AND THE PROJECTED RATE OF RETURN 
 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

A. Funding Value Beginning of Year 128,248,730$     132,464,823$     

B. Market Value End of Year 120,831,163 134,391,230

C. Market Value Beginning of Year 97,312,156 120,831,163

D. Non-Investment Net Cash Flow
(EE + ER cont.) - (Ret Ben. + Refunds 479,431 (5,413,479)
   + Adm. exp)

E. Investment Income:

E1. Market Total: B-C-D 23,039,576 18,973,546

E2. Assumed Rate 6.50% 6.50%

E3. Amount for Immediate Recognition:
E2 * (A+D/2) 8,351,749 8,434,275

E4. Amount for Phased-In Recognition: E1-E3 14,687,827 10,539,271

F. Phased-In Recognition of Investment Income:
F1. Current Year: 0.20*E4 2,937,565 2,107,854
F2. First Prior Year (8,466,090) 2,937,565 2,107,854$      
F3. Second Prior Year 679,073 (8,466,090) 2,937,565 2,107,854$      
F4. Third Prior Year 656,202 679,073 (8,466,090) 2,937,565 2,107,854$      
F5. Fourth Prior Year (421,837) 656,202 679,071 (8,466,088) 2,937,567 2,107,855$      
F6. Total Recognized Investment Gain (4,615,087) (2,085,396) (2,741,600) (3,420,669) 5,045,421 2,107,855

G. Funding Value End of Year: A+D+E3+F6 132,464,823$  133,400,223$  

H. Difference between Market & Funding Value (11,633,660) 991,007

I. Recognized Rate of Return 2.91% 4.89%

J. Ratio of Funding Value to Market Value 110% 99%  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-4 
 



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-5 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

A. Funding Value Beginning of Year 128,248,730$     132,464,823$     

B. Market Value End of Year 120,831,163 134,391,230

C. Market Value Beginning of Year 97,312,156 120,831,163

D. Non-Investment Net Cash Flow
(EE + ER cont.) - (Ret Ben. + Refunds 479,431 (5,413,479)
   + Adm. exp)

E. Investment Income:

E1. Market Total: B-C-D 23,039,576 18,973,546

E2. Assumed Rate 6.50% 6.50%

E3. Amount for Immediate Recognition:
E2 * (A+D/2) 8,351,749 8,434,275

E4. Amount for Phased-In Recognition: E1-E3 14,687,827 10,539,271

F. Phased-In Recognition of Investment Income:
F1. Current Year: 0.20*E4 2,937,565 2,107,854
F2. First Prior Year (8,466,090) 2,937,565 247,752$        
F3. Second Prior Year 679,073 (8,466,090) n/a 247,752$        
F4. Third Prior Year 656,202 679,073 n/a n/a 247,752$        
F5. Fourth Prior Year (421,837) 656,202 n/a n/a n/a 247,751$        
F6. Total Recognized Investment Gain (4,615,087) (2,085,396) 247,752 247,752 247,752 247,751

G. Funding Value End of Year: A+D+E3+F6 132,464,823$  133,400,223$  

H. Difference between Market & Funding Value (11,633,660) 991,007

I. Recognized Rate of Return 2.91% 4.89%

J. Ratio of Funding Value to Market Value 110% 99%
 

 

 

DERIVATION OF VALUATION ASSETS 
MARKET VALUE WITH 20% RECOGNITION OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN 

THE MARKET RATE OF RETURN AND THE ASSUMED RATE OF RETURN 
ALTERNATE RECOGNITION OF UNRECOGNIZED GAINS/LOSSES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 



ASSET INFORMATION REPORTED FOR VALUATION COMPARATIVE STATEMENT 
 

Year
Ended Employee Employer Investment Misc. Retirement Contrib. Health Misc. Assets

December 31 Contrib. Contrib. Income Income Benefits Refunds Insurance Expenses Year-End *

1985 $    1,011 $1,483,547 $   3,952,592 $    0 $   349,086 $     11,087 $        18,268 $          3,026 $   25,952,007
1986 8,126 1,864,968 7,423,057 0 487,308 8,960 22,931 3,445 34,725,514
1987 1,998 1,922,529 1,264,117 0 559,647 893 32,525 4,321 37,316,772
1988 1,296 1,989,070 3,384,845 0 621,836 8,490 55,381 0 42,006,276
1989 1,490 2,259,952 7,158,731 0 712,137 19,967 60,189 9,010 50,625,146

1990 1,558 2,401,060 3,861,487 0 782,167 19,292 68,886 4,984 56,013,922
1991 1,760 3,081,239 11,116,274 0 878,775 1,431 87,281 0 69,245,708
1992 6,177 2,626,564 7,134,901 0 1,040,882 14,188 100,340 5,600 77,852,340

1993 24,939 2,647,753 7,900,961 0 1,115,225 392 119,120 6,000 87,185,256

1994 144,934 2,950,360 (187,532) 0 1,351,290 590 152,637 6,300 88,582,201

1995 198,746 3,156,148 20,889,448 0 1,819,840 14,066 220,291 6,600 110,765,746
1996 335,144 3,311,550 16,325,274 0 2,013,257 3,047 251,138 11,300 128,458,972
1997 371,811 3,167,814 25,544,354 0 2,459,287 11,273 329,312 16,404 154,726,675
1998 340,807 2,819,785 21,825,629 0 2,666,133 19,105,397 449,779 19,846 160,216,807

1999 335,828 1,795,070 12,085,389 0 2,860,935 1,095,796 481,660 28,782 167,220,855

2000 421,161 1,113,993 3,075,759 0 3,156,251 7,349,663 688,138 27,515 160,610,201
2001 398,572 1,303,079 2,162,267 0 3,351,223 6,753,854 693,345 28,998 153,646,699
2002 364,130 1,532,439 (7,992,398) 0 3,496,301 7,249,513 942,054 31,653 135,831,349
2003 343,629 1,543,286 25,064,474 0 3,843,356 10,230 1,102,076 29,334 157,797,742
2004 333,305 1,571,547 12,763,027 0 4,482,783 335,998 1,254,559 29,322 166,362,959

2005 309,731 972,454 2,995,153 0 4,923,401 2,613 1,368,331 53,247 164,292,705
2006 308,887 247,688 14,764,828 0 5,529,394 57,875 1,592,311 32,382 172,402,146
2007 315,677 218,653 15,286,055 0 5,924,256 5,516 1,855,527 47,947 180,389,285
2008 316,708 376,155 (44,700,324) 0 6,204,282 0 2,101,958 62,349 128,013,235
2009 7,651,667 # 838,969 33,216,875 0 7,944,132 0 2,558,948 67,073 159,150,593
2010 285,047 1,953,321 22,366,478 0 7,596,953 0 3,042,783 54,894 173,060,809

                                   Revenues                                   Expenses

 

*  Includes assets for retiree health benefits. 

#  Includes amounts moved from the City’s defined contribution plan for employees choosing to transfer to the Employees Retirement System. 

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-6 
 



 
 

SUMMARY OF 
CURRENT ASSET INFORMATION * 

REPORTED FOR VALUATION 

 
 

Market Value of Assets 
 

Cash & equivalents $   4,781,044  $   7,383,369  
Government bonds   16,220,312    20,705,160  
Corporate bonds 19,985,248 29,571,059
Stock 123,260,256 101,491,005
Bond mutual funds 8,813,949 0
Other (annuities) 0 0
Total assets 173,060,809 159,150,593
Less accounts payable 0 0
Net assets available for benefits $173,060,809 $159,150,593

12/31/2010
Market Value

12/31/2009
Market Value

 
 
 
 

Revenues and Expenses 
 
 

2010 2009

Balance - January 1 $ 159,150,593 128,013,235$     
Revenues
   Employees' contributions 285,047 7,651,667 #
   Employer contributions 1,953,321 838,969
   Investment income 22,366,478 33,216,875
   Miscellaneous 0 0
Expenses
   Benefit payments 7,596,953 7,944,132
   Refunds of member contributions 0 0
   Administrative expenses 54,894 67,073
   Health insurance premiums 3,042,783 2,558,948
   Miscellaneous 0 0

Balance - December 31 $ 173,060,809 159,150,593$     

Rate of return net of expenses 14.4% 26.2%  
 
*  Includes assets for retiree health benefits. 
#  Includes amounts moved from the City’s defined contribution plan for employees choosing to transfer to the 

Employees Retirement System. 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-7 
 



 
 

RECENT HISTORICAL MARKET VALUE RATES OF RETURN 
 
 

Year 
Ending

Rate of 
Return

Five Year 
Average

Ten Year 
Average

2001 1.4%
2002 -5.4%
2003 18.7%
2004 8.2%
2005 1.8% 4.6%
2006 9.2% 6.2%
2007 9.1% 9.3%
2008 -25.3% -0.4%
2009 26.2% 2.7%
2010 14.4% 5.1% 4.9%  

  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-8 
 



 
 

RETIREES AND BENEFICIARIES ADDED TO AND REMOVED FROM ROLLS 
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT 
 
 

Year % Incr. Average Present
Ended Annual Post-Ret. Annual Annual Annual Annual Value of Expected

December 31 No. Benefit Increases No. Benefit No. Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefits Removal
1986 8 $     64,758 1 $     3,820 71  $   531,906 12.9% 7,492 $   6,006,326 1.3
1987 6 45,628 3 12,295 74  565,239 6.3   7,638 6,307,514 1.6
1988 6 82,290 2 8,825 78  538,704 13.0   8,188 6,997,601 1.7
1989 6 71,518 $   26,993 1 4,836 83  732,379 14.7   8,824 7,902,521 1.9
1990 5 102,108 2 13,370 86  821,117 12.1   9,548 8,852,756 2.1

1991 10 185,752 6 53,568 90  953,301 16.1   10,592 10,403,174 2.2
1992 10 154,697 4 41,160 96  1,066,838 11.9   11,113 11,711,334 2.4
1993 6 110,685 3 26,135 99  1,151,388 7.9   11,630 12,514,776 2.6
1994 21 648,681 (1,572) 120  1,798,497 56.2   14,987 20,491,084 2.7
1995 6 84,312 4 55,506 122  1,827,303 1.6   14,978 21,287,811 2.9

1996 20 446,833 6 60,831 136  2,213,305 21.1   16,274 25,459,651 2.0
1997 14 420,457 1 10,217 149  2,623,545 18.5   17,608 30,537,712 2.8
1998 8 163,633 4 56,055 153  2,731,123 4.1   17,850 31,402,870 3.6
1999 10 286,293 3 69,193 160  2,948,223 7.9   18,426 33,748,959 4.0

2000 11 340,403 8 59,325 163  3,229,301 9.5   19,812 37,083,835 4.0

2001 9 240,483 3 24,905 169  3,444,879 6.7   20,384 39,424,271 4.4
2002 8 189,284 6 59,479 171  3,574,684 3.8   20,905 40,667,169 4.4
2003 15 521,015 4 17,957 182  4,077,742 14.1   22,405 47,046,673 4.4
2004 21 615,572 7 87,193 196  4,606,121 13.0   23,501 53,030,527 4.8

2005 14 520,152 5 101,352 205  5,024,921 9.1   24,512 57,995,428 4.8

2006 15 609,624 3 29,746 217  5,604,799 11.5   25,829 64,573,648 4.8

2007 18 459,496 3 53,602 232  6,010,693 7.2   25,908 68,494,664 5.5

2008 11 176,381 3 30,933 240  6,156,141 2.4   25,651 69,351,765 5.8

2009 23 1,270,351 8 114,219 255  7,312,273 18.8   28,676 84,166,668 6.4
2010 17 547,081 7 93,784 265  7,765,570 6.2 29,304 88,664,507 6.4

Added to Rolls Removed from Rolls   Rolls End of Year

 
    

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-9 
 



 

 
RETIREES AND BENEFICIARIES - DECEMBER 31, 2010 

TABULATED BY VALUATION DIVISIONS 
 

 
DEFINED BENEFIT MEMBERS 

 
 

Valuation Division No.

General 184 4,140,618$       69.1 years

Public Safety 81 3,624,952 62.1 years

Totals 265 7,765,570$       

AgeAnnual Benefits

 
 
 
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-10 
 



 
RETIREES AND BENEFICIARIES INCLUDED IN DEFINED BENEFIT VALUATION 

TABULATED BY TYPE OF BENEFITS BEING PAID 

DECEMBER 31, 2010 
 
 

Age and Service benefits
Regular benefit - benefit 77 $1,714,967
terminating at death of retirant

100% joint and survivor benefit
Option A 59 2,749,310
Option C 51 1,738,716

50% joint and survivor benefits
Option B 21 534,471
Option D 19 576,839

Survivor Beneficiary 27 329,219

Total age and service benefits 254 7,643,521

Casualty benefits
Non-Duty Disability - Regular

- Retiree 1 $     12,097
- Beneficiary 4 21,843

Duty- Disability - Option A 1 7,866

Non-Duty Death benefit 3 44,206

Duty Death benefit 2 36,037

Total Casualty benefits 11 122,049                 

Total Benefits Being Paid 265 $7,765,570
      

Number Benefits
Annual

Type of Benefits Being Paid

 
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-11 
 



 

RETIREES AND BENEFICIARIES INCLUDED IN DEFINED BENEFIT VALUATION 
BY ATTAINED AGES 
DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 
 

 
Attained

Ages No.
40-44     1 7,866$               

45-49     0 0

50-54   20 884,535

55-59   51 2,317,937

60-64   62 2,064,280

65-69   43 1,030,275

70-74   25 634,327

75-79   26 447,851

80-84   23 257,540

85-89   12 93,513

90-94     1 13,622

95-99     1 13,824

Totals 265 7,765,570$      

Annual
Pensions

  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-12 
 



 

VESTED TERMINATED MEMBERS INCLUDED IN DEFINED BENEFIT VALUATION 
BY ATTAINED AGES 
DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 
 
 

Attained
Ages No.

47 1 5,110$        
49 1 13,230
51 2 15,012
52 1 8,033
53 1 16,662
55 1 13,419
56 1 3,414
57 1 11,442
58 2 31,580

Totals 11   117,902$   

Annual
Benefits

Estimated

 
 
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-13 
 



 

ACTIVE MEMBERS - DECEMBER 31, 2010 
TABULATED BY VALUATION DIVISIONS 

 
 

DEFINED BENEFIT MEMBERS 
 
 

Valuation Division No.

General 51 3,206,665$       52.9 years 21.0 years $62,876

Public Safety 64 5,752,675 46.0 years 18.8 years 89,886

Totals 115 8,959,340$       

Annual Payroll
Average

Age
Average

Pay
Average
Service

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-14 
 



 

ACTIVE MEMBERS INCLUDED IN DEFINED BENEFIT VALUATION 
 

Valn.
Date Comm/

Dec. 31 Other Total

1972 183 66 249 2,907,267$  36.1 yrs. 4.7 yrs. 11,676$ 7.6 %
1973 205 64 269 3,434,997 36.2 4.9 12,770 9.4
1974 222 68 290 4,123,892 36.3 5.3 14,220 11.4
1975 247 81 328 4,996,368 36.2 5.5 15,233 7.1
1976 254 20 62 336 5,615,394 36.8 6.2 16,712 9.7
1977 269 18 63 350 5,970,264 37.7 6.5 17,058 2.1
1978 261 18 69 348 6,628,692 38.0 7.2 19,048 11.7
1979 282 22 72 376 7,700,464 37.9 7.2 20,480 7.5
1980 279 21 86 386 8,947,885 38.0 7.6 23,181 13.2
1981 100 167 25 87 379 9,697,649 38.4 8.3 25,587 10.4
1982 92 163 32 78 365 9,954,722 39.0 9.2 27,273 6.6
1983 94 140 30 78 342 10,214,049 39.2 10.0 29,866 9.5
1984 97 135 32 74 338 10,518,429 39.2 11.3 31,120 4.2
1985 103 139 32 79 353 11,373,793 39.2 11.1 32,220 3.5
1986 108 141 37 79 365 12,048,592 39.5 11.0 33,010 2.5
1987 116 143 41 84 384 13,083,451 40.0 11.3 34,071 3.2
1988 118 142 43 86 389 14,162,413 40.4 11.7 36,407 6.8
1989 122 144 47 86 399 14,774,001 40.5 11.7 37,028 1.7
1990 128 148 46 90 412 16,105,129 41.1 12.0 39,090 5.6
1991 129 150 44 98 421 17,323,677 41.5 12.0 41,149 5.3
1992 132 150 45 96 423 17,619,701 42.0 12.7 41,654 1.2
1993 134 150 47 93 424 18,518,880 42.6 13.1 43,677 4.9
1994 128 147 39 87 401 17,598,618 43.0 13.4 43,887 0.5
1995 127 153 43 95 418 19,039,969 43.4 13.6 45,550 3.8

1996@ 135 * 160 44 95 434 20,535,959 43.2 13.1 47,318 3.9
1997 55 * 146 37 102 340 16,133,023 42.4 12.1 47,590 0.6
1998 59 116 * 40 99 314 16,201,219 43.0 13.3 51,761 8.8
1999 55 85 # 40 99 279 15,056,554 43.4 14.4 54,553 5.4
2000 55 76 29 97 * 257 15,441,200 44.1 14.8 60,317 10.6
2001 56 73 20 92 241 14,566,460 44.7 14.7 60,442 0.2
2002 59 66 21 71 217 13,552,549 45.7 15.8 62,454 3.3
2003 56 61 19 69 205 13,052,713 46.5 16.3 63,672 1.9
2004 52 54 19 61 186 12,572,374 46.9 16.9 67,593 6.2
2005 48 51 21 54 174 12,099,631 47.7 17.4 69,538 2.9
2006 44 46 20 51 161 11,471,511 48.0 17.6 71,252 2.5
2007 37 40 21 49 147 11,045,745 48.1 18.1 75,141 5.5
2008 37 36 22 47 142 10,953,297 48.8 19.0 77,136 2.7
2009 30 32 20 46 128 10,483,020 48.9 19.1 81,899 6.2
2010 23 28 18 46 115 8,959,340 49.1 19.7 77,907 (4.9)

TPOA

Active Members
Public Safety

Class/
Exempt

General

Other

Average

% Incr.
Valuation

Payroll Age Service Pay

 
*    Includes 1 member on leave of absence. 
#    Includes 3  members on leave of absence. 
@  Represents the peak of active membership. 

 

  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-15 
 



 

ADDITIONS TO AND REMOVALS FROM ACTIVE MEMBERSHIP 
ACTUAL AND EXPECTED NUMBERS 

 
 

Active
Year Trans. Members

Ended to DC End of
Dec. 31 A E A E A E A A E Year

1991   9 8.7 0 1.1 0 1.0   6 24.8  421
1992   7 6.6  0 1.2 0 1.0   4   23.1 423
1993   6 9.1  0 1.2 0 1.2 11   21.4 424
1994 19 14.6  0 1.2 1 1.1 12   20.5 401
1995   3 8.6  0 1.2 1 1.2 10   17.8 418

1996 15 8.7  0 1.3 0 0.8   9   23.5 434
1997 13 8.7  0 1.3 0 0.8 98 10   23.5 340
1998   4 6.9  0 0.8 0 0.8 28   3   18.6 314
1999   7 8.6  0 0.7 0 0.5 26   7   14.7 279
2000   9 9.3  0 0.6 0 0.4 11   3   10.3 257

2001   4 6.9  0 0.6 1 0.5 10   1     8.2 241
2002   6 5.3  0 0.8 0 0.5 19   0     6.5 217
2003 10 4.4  0 0.7 1 0.4   0   1     5.3 205
2004 15 13.5  0 0.6 0 0.4   0   4     3.5 186
2005 10 13.5  1 0.6 0 0.4   0   1     3.5 174

2006 13 10.6  0 0.6 0 0.4   0   1     3.1 161
2007 13 9.5  0 0.6 0 0.4   0   1     2.6 147
2008   5 11.5  0 0.5 0 0.3   0   0     2.3 142
2009 14 11.7  0 0.5 0 0.3   0   0     2.0 128
2010 12   12.8   1   0.5   0 0.3   0   0     1.7 115

5-Yr. Totals 57   56.1   1   2.7   0  1.7  0  2    11.7

Normal
Retirement

Disability
Retirement

Other

Terminations

Died-In-
Service

 
 A   represents actual number. 
 E   represents expected number based on assumptions outlined in Section C. 

  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-16 
 



 

GENERAL (CLERICAL) - DECEMBER 31, 2010 
BY ATTAINED AGE AND YEARS OF SERVICE 

 
 
 

Age

Group 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30 Plus

30-34 1 1 52,744$         

35-39 0 0

40-44 1 1 2 116,031

45-49 2 2 112,865

50-54 1 1 1 1 4 198,980

55-59 1 1 2 104,750

60 1 1 45,333

65 1 1 49,668

67 1 1 43,909

Totals 6 3 1 3 1 14 724,280$     

Years of Accrued Service Totals

SalaryNo.

 

  

 While not used in the financial computations, the following group averages are computed and shown because 

of their general interest: 

 
 

Age:  52.1 years.

Service: 18.8 years.

Annual Pay:  $51,734  
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-17 
 



 

GENERAL (CLASSIFIED AND EXEMPT) - DECEMBER 31, 2010 
BY ATTAINED AGE AND YEARS OF SERVICE 

 
 

Age
Group 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30 Plus Salary

40-44   1   1 2 135,416$       

45-49 2 2 136,697

50-54   1 3 2 1 7 600,998

55-59   1   2 2 2 3 10 667,701

61 1 1 95,339
68 1 1 51,031

Totals 3 3 8 5 4 23 1,687,182$  

Years of Accrued Service Totals
No.

 
 

While not used in the financial computations, the following group averages are computed and shown 

because of their general interest: 

    
Age:  53.9 years.

Service:  23.5 years.

Annual Pay: $73,356  
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-18 
 



 

GENERAL (AFSCME) - DECEMBER 31, 2010 
BY ATTAINED AGE AND YEARS OF SERVICE 

 
 

Age

Group 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30 Plus Salary

40-44 1 1 2 99,540$         

45-49 1 1 70,189

50-54 1 2 4 7 397,190

55-59 1 1 1 3 174,877

60 1 1 53,407

Totals 3 4 6 1 14 795,203$     

Years of Accrued Service

No.

Totals

 
 

While not used in the financial computations, the following group averages are computed and shown 

because of their general interest: 

 

Age:  52.0 years.

Service:  19.1 years.

Annual Pay: $56,800  
 

  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-19 
 



 

PUBLIC SAFETY – (T.F.S.O.A.)  - DECEMBER 31, 2010 
BY ATTAINED AGE AND YEARS OF SERVICE 

 
 

Age
Group 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30 Plus No. Salary

60 1 1 109,373$    

Totals 1 1 109,373$  

Years of Accrued Service Totals

 
 
While not used in the financial computations, the following group averages are computed and shown 

because of their general interest: 

 

Age:  60.0 years.

Service:  30.5 years.

Annual Pay:  $109,373  
 
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-20 
 



 

PUBLIC SAFETY (T.P.O.A.) - DECEMBER 31, 2010 
By Attained Age and Years of Service 

 
 
Age

Group 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30 Plus Salary

30-34 2 2 $      151,114

35-39   1   5   6 511,325

40-44   6     7 2 15 1,216,273

45-49   3 6 9 736,549

50-54   3 3 1 7 584,912

55-59   2 2 1 5 434,389

60   1   1 2 152,626

Totals 1 14       15       13       2       1       46 $ 3,787,188

Years of Accrued Service
No.

Totals

 
 

While not used in the financial computations, the following group averages are computed and shown 

because of their general interest: 

 
Age:  45.6 years.

Service:  17.8 years.

Annual Pay:  $82,330  
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-21 
 



 

PUBLIC SAFETY (T.C.O.A.) - DECEMBER 31, 2010 
BY ATTAINED AGE AND YEARS OF SERVICE 

 
 

Age
Group 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30 Plus Salary

35-39 1 1 89,025$         

40-44 3 3 6 622,617

45-49 2 1 3 325,379

50-54 3 3 6 699,248

55-59 1 1 119,845
Totals 4 3 5 4 1 17 1,856,114$  

Years of Accrued Service
No.

Totals

 
 

 
While not used in the financial computations, the following group averages are computed and shown 

because of their general interest: 

 

 
 

Age:  46.4 years.

Service:  20.7 years.

Annual Pay:  $109,183  
 

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  B-22 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION C 
FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES ,  ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
PROCESS ,  ACTUARIAL COST METHODS,  
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS AND DEFINITIONS OF  
TECHNICAL TERMS 
 
 

 
 
 

 



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-1 
 

 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL PRINCIPLES AND OPERATION OF THE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 
 
Benefit Promises Made Which Must Be Paid For.  A retirement program is an orderly means of handing 

out, keeping track of, and financing pension promises to a group of employees.  As each member of the 

retirement program acquires a unit of service credit the member is, in effect, handed an "IOU" which 

reads:  "The City of Troy Employees Retirement System promises to pay you one unit of retirement 

benefits, payments in cash commencing when you retire." 

 
The principal related financial question is:  When shall the money required to cover the "IOU" be 

contributed?  This year, when the benefit of the member's service is received?  Or, some future year when 

the "IOU" becomes a cash demand? 

 
The Constitution of the State of Michigan is directed to the question: 

 "Financial benefits arising on account of service rendered in each fiscal year shall be funded 

during that year and such funding shall not be used for financing unfunded accrued 

liabilities." 

 
This Retirement System meets this requirement by having as its financial objective the establishment and 

receipt of contributions which will fund the expected benefits over the average future working lifetimes 

of the remaining active members. 

 
The accumulation of invested assets is a by-product of prefunding a retirement system, not the objective.  

Investment income is a major contributor to the retirement program, and the amount is directly related to 

the amount of contributions and investment performance. 

  



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-2 
 

 
 
If contributions to the retirement program are less than the preceding amount, the difference, plus 

investment earnings not realized thereon, will have to be contributed at some later time (or benefits will 

have to be reduced) to satisfy the fundamental fiscal equation under which all retirement programs must 

operate: 

 
 B = C + I - E 
 

 The aggregate amount of Benefit payments to any group of members and their beneficiaries 

cannot exceed the sum of: 

  The aggregate amount of Contributions received on behalf of the group 

  ... plus ... 

  Investment earnings on contributions received and not required for immediate 

cash payments of benefits 

  ... minus ... 

  The Expenses of operating the program. 

 
There are retirement programs designed to defer the bulk of contributions far into the future.  The present 

contribution rate for such systems is artificially low. The fact that the contribution rate is destined to 

increase relentlessly to a much higher level is often ignored. 

 
This method of financing is prohibited in Michigan by the state constitution. 
 
Computed Contribution Rate Needed to Finance Benefits.  From a given schedule of benefits and from 

the data furnished, the actuary calculates the contribution rate by means of an actuarial valuation - the 

technique of assigning monetary values to the risks assumed in operating a retirement program. 

 
Prefunding retirement benefits results in each generation of taxpayers paying for the benefits earned 

during that generation.  Deferring the bulk of contributions into the future can result in the next generation 

paying for the benefits earned in the current generation. 

  



 
 
 

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-3 
 

 
 
 
CASH BENEFITS LINE.  This relentlessly increasing line is the fundamental reality of retirement 
plan financing.  It happens each time a new benefit is added for future retirements (and happens 
regardless of the design for contributing for benefits). 
 
LEVEL CONTRIBUTION LINE.  Determining the level contribution line requires detailed 
assumptions concerning a variety of experiences in future decades, including: 
 Economic Risk Areas 
  Rates of investment return 
  Rates of pay increase 
  Changes in active member group size 
 Non-Economic Risk Areas 
  Ages at actual retirement 
  Rates of mortality 
  Rates of withdrawal of active members (turnover) 
  Rates of disability 
  



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-4 
 

 
 

THE ACTUARIAL VALUATION PROCESS 
 
 
The financing diagram on the previous page shows the relationship between the two fundamentally 

different philosophies of paying for retirement benefits:  the method where contributions match cash 

benefit payments (or barely exceed cash benefit payments, as in the Federal Social Security program) 

which is an increasing contribution method; and the level contribution method which equalizes 

contributions between the generations. 

 
 
The actuarial valuation is the mathematical process by which the level contribution rate is determined, 

and the flow of activity constituting the valuation may be summarized as follows: 

 
A.  Covered Person Data, furnished by plan administrator. 

   Retired lives now receiving benefits 

   Former employees with vested benefits not yet payable 

   Active employees 

 
B. + Asset data (cash & investments), furnished by plan administrator 
 
 
C. + Assumptions concerning future financial experience in various risk areas, which assumptions are 

established by the Board of Trustees after consulting with the actuary 

 
D. + The funding method for employer contributions (the long-term, planned pattern for employer 

contributions) 

 
E. + Mathematically combining the assumptions, the funding method, and the data 
 
F. = Determination of: 

   Plan financial position 

   and/or New Employer Contribution Rate 

  



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-5 
 

 
 

ACTUARIAL COST METHODS USED FOR THE VALUATION 
 
 

The funding method used in this actuarial valuation is the Aggregate Cost Method.  Under this method the 

Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits of the group included in the valuation, less the sum of the 

Funding Value of Assets and the Actuarial Present Value of Future Member Contributions is allocated 

over a future scheduled period.  This allocation is performed for the group as a whole, not as a sum of 

individual allocations.  The portion of this Actuarial Present Value allocated to a specific year is called the 

City’s Annual Normal Cost.  Under this method, actuarial gains (losses) reduce (increase) future Normal 

Costs.   

 

 
  



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-6 
 

 
 

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS IN THE VALUATION PROCESS 
 
 
The actuary calculates contribution requirements and actuarial present values of a retirement system by 

applying actuarial assumptions to the benefit provisions and people information of the system, using the 

actuarial cost methods described on page C-5. 

 
The principal areas of risk which require assumptions about future experience are: 

 

 (i) Long-term rates of investment return to be generated by the assets of the System. 

(ii) Patterns of pay increases to members. 

(iii) Rates of mortality among members, retirants and beneficiaries. 

(iv) Rates of withdrawal of active members. 

(v) Rates of disability among active members. 

(vi) The age patterns of actual retirements. 

 
 
In making a valuation, the actuary calculates the monetary effect of each assumption for as long as a 

present covered person survives - - - a period of time which can be as long as a century. 

 

 

The employer contribution rate has been computed to remain level from year to year so long as benefits 

and the basic experience and make-up of members do not change. Examples of favorable experience 

which would tend to reduce the employer contribution rate are: 

 
 (1) Investment returns in excess of 6.5% per year. 

 (2) Member non-vested terminations at a higher rate than outlined on page C-11. 

 (3) Mortality among retirees and beneficiaries at a higher rate than indicated by the 

RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table. 

  

 
  



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-7 
 

 
 
Examples of unfavorable experience which would tend to increase the employer contribution rate are: 
 
 (1) Pay increases in excess of the rates outlined on page C-9. 

 (2) An acceleration in the rate of retirement from the rates outlined on page C-12. 

 

 

Actual experience of the system will not coincide exactly with assumed experience, regardless of the 

choice of the assumptions, the skill of the actuary or the precision of the calculations.  Each valuation 

provides a complete recalculation of assumed future experience and takes into account all past differences 

between assumed and actual experience.  The result is a continual series of adjustments (usually small) to 

the computed contribution rate. 

 

From time to time one or more of the assumptions is modified to reflect experience trends (but not random 

or temporary year to year fluctuations). 

 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

RELATIONSHIP OF ECONOMIC ASSUMPTIONS 
IN COMPUTING CONTRIBUTIONS TO A RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 
 

 

Investment Return

Pay Base Increases After
Retirement

HIRE RETIRE DIE
 
 
 
Investment Return 
 
An increase in this assumption reduces computed contributions.  The assumption operates over all parts of 

an employee’s lifetime. 

 
Pay Base 
 
An increase in this assumption increases computed contributions.  However, a 1% increase in this 

assumption, coupled with a 1% increase in Investment Return reduces computed contributions.  This is 

because the Pay Base assumption operates only over an employee’s working lifetime, while the 

Investment Return assumption operates over the employee’s entire lifetime, and therefore has a greater 

effect. 

 
Increases After Retirement 
 
An increase in this element increases computed contributions.   

 

 
If Investment Return, Pay Base, and Increases After Retirement are each increased by equal amounts, 

computed contributions remain the same (except in plans using Final Average Pay as a factor in 

computing benefits; the multi-year average used for Final Average Pay causes computed contributions to 

decrease slightly). 

 
If Investment Return and Pay Base are increased by equal amounts, with no change in Increases After 

Retirement, computed contributions decrease – sometimes significantly.  The decreases represent the 

projected devaluation of an employee’s benefits following retirement. 

 

  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-8 
 



 
 

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS USED FOR THE VALUATION 
 
 
Investment Return (net of expenses). 

6.5% per year, compounded annually.  This rate consists of a real rate of return of 3.0% per year plus a 

long-term rate of wage inflation of 3.5% per year. 

 
This assumption is used to equate the value of payments due at different points in time and was first used 

for the December 31, 1995 valuation.  The 3.5% wage inflation assumption was first used for the 

December 31, 2007 valuation.  Approximate rates of investment return, for the purpose of comparisons 

with assumed rates, are shown below: 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Recognized Rate of Investment Return 
of Funding Value of Assets 4.9% 2.9% 0.7% 7.2% 6.7%

Year Ended December 31

 

 The nominal rate of return was computed using the approximate formula i = I divided 

by 1/2 (A + B - I), where I is actual investment income (after smoothing gains and 

losses) net of expenses, A is the beginning of year valuation asset value, and B is the 

end of year valuation asset value. 

 
These rates of return should not be used for measurement of an investment advisor's performance 

or for comparisons with other systems -- to do so will mislead. 

 
Pay Projections.  These assumptions are used to project current pays to those upon which benefits will be 

based.  The assumptions were first used for the December 31, 2007 valuation. 

Sample
Ages

35 3.5 2.5 6.0

40 3.5 2.2 5.7
45 3.5 1.7 5.2
50 3.5 1.2 4.7
55 3.5 0.7 4.2
60 3.5 0.2 3.7

Annual Rate of Pay Increase for Sample Ages

Merit and Longevity Total(Economic)
Base

  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-9 
 



 
 
Changes actually experienced in average pay have been as follows: 
 
 

3-Year 5-Year
Increase in 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 Average Average

Average pay (4.9)% 6.2% 2.7% 5.5% 2.5% 1.2% 2.3%

              Year Ended December 31               

 
 
Note: The changes in average pay shown above are affected by changes in active membership during the 

year as well as individual annual pay increases of the members.  

 
 
Mortality Table.  The RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, for males and females.  This table 

was first used for the December 31, 2007 valuation.  Sample values follow: 

 

Sample
Attained

Ages Men Women Men Women

50 $156.42 $161.11 30.80 33.59
55 146.11 152.04 26.18 28.91
60 133.49 140.76 21.74 24.38
65 118.85 127.55 17.61 20.12
70 102.73 112.76 13.88 16.23
75 85.47 96.73 10.57 12.74
80 68.04 79.91 7.75 9.68

Single Life Retirement Values
Future Life

Expectancy (Years)
Present Value of $1.00

Monthly for Life

 

 
 
This assumption is used to measure the probabilities of members dying before retirement and the 

probabilities of each benefit payment being made after retirement. 

 
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-10 
 



 
 
Rates of separation from active membership.  The rates do not apply to members eligible to retire and do 

not include separation on account of death or disability. This assumption measures the probabilities of 

members remaining in employment. 

Sample Years of
Ages Service

ALL 0 30.00 % 15.00 %
1 20.00 10.00
2 15.00 8.00
3 10.00 7.00
4 7.00 6.00

25 5 & Over 6.00 5.00
30 6.00 4.50
35 6.00 3.55
40 6.00 1.45
45 3.50 0.75
50 1.50 0.75
55 1.50 0.75
60 1.50 0.75

General Public Safety
Percent Separating Within Next Year

 
 
The rates were first used for the December 31, 1975 valuation. 
 
Rates of Disability.  These assumptions represent the probabilities of active members becoming disabled. 

Sample
Ages

20 0.08 % 0.10 %
25 0.08 0.10
30 0.08 0.10
35 0.08 0.10
40 0.20 0.36
45 0.26 0.41
50 0.49 0.57
55 0.89 0.77
60 1.41 1.02
65 1.66 1.23

Men
Percent Becoming Disabled Within Next Year

Women

 
 
These rates were first used for the December 31, 1976 valuation. 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-11 
 



 
 
Rates of Retirement.  These rates are used to measure the probabilities of an eligible member retiring 

during the next year. 

 

Retirement T.F.S.O.A.
Ages General & Exempt T.C.O.A. T.P.O.A.

43 35 40
44 25 40
45 20 40
46 15 40
47 15 40
48 15 40
49 15 35
50 15 35 15 20
51 10 25 25 15
52 5 20 30 15
53 5 15 100 15
54 5 15 15
55 5 15 15
56 5 15 15
57 5 15 25
58 5 25 100
59 5 30 100
60 5 100
61 5
62 30
63 10
64 10
65 100

Percent of Active Members
Retiring Within Next Year

Public Safety

 
 

T.P.O.A, T.F.S.O.A. and T.C.O.A. members were assumed to be eligible for retirement after 25 years of 

service, or after attaining age 60 with 10 or more years of service.  General AFSCME, General Clerical, 

and Classified or Exempt members were assumed to be eligible for retirement after attaining age 50 with 

27 years of service, or age 55 with 25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service. 
 

These rates were first used for the December 31, 1973 valuation.  The rates for Classified, Exempt and 

Command Officers were first used for the December 31, 1981 valuation.  The rates for Non-

Classified/Exempt General members were first used for the December 31, 1986 valuation. 
 

  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-12 
 



 

SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS USED 
DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 
 
 

Pensions in an Inflationary Environment 
 
 

VALUE OF $1,000/MONTH RETIREMENT BENEFIT 
To an Individual Who Retires at Age 60 
In an Environment of 3.50% Inflation 

 

Age

60 $1,000

61 966

62 933

63 901

64 871

65 842

70 708

75 596

80 502

85 423

Value

 
 

 
The life expectancy of a 60 year old male retiree is age 82.  The life expectancy for a 60 year old 

female retiree is age 84.  Half of the people will outlive their life expectancy.  The effects of even 

moderate amounts of inflation can be significant for those who live to an advanced age. 

 

 
 
  

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-13 
 



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-14 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS USED 

MISCELLANEOUS AND TECHNICAL ASSUMPTIONS  
DECEMBER 31, 2010 

 
 
Marriage Assumption. 90% of males and 90% of females are assumed to be married for purposes 

of death-in-service benefits. 

 
Pay Increase Timing. Beginning of (Fiscal) year. This is equivalent to assuming that reported pays 

represent amounts paid to members during the year ended on the valuation date. 

 
Decrement Timing. Decrements of all types are assumed to occur mid-year. 

 
Eligibility Testing. Eligibility for benefits is determined based upon the age nearest birthday and 

service nearest whole year on the date the decrement is assumed to occur. 

 
Benefit Service. Exact fractional service is used to determine the amount of benefit payable. 

 
Decrement Relativity. Decrement rates are used without adjustment for multiple decrement table 

effects. 

 
Decrement Operation. Disability and mortality decrements do not operate during the first 5 years 

of service.  Disability and withdrawal do not operate during retirement eligibility. 

 
Normal Form of Benefit. The assumed normal form of benefit is the straight life form. 

 
Incidence of Contributions. Contributions are assumed to be received continuously throughout the 

year based upon the computed percent of payroll shown in this report, and the actual payroll payable 

at the time contributions are made.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-15 
 

 

DEFINITIONS OF TECHNICAL TERMS 
 
 
Accrued Service.  Service credited under the system which was rendered before the date of the 

actuarial valuation. 

 

Actuarial Accrued Liability.  The difference between the actuarial present value of system benefits 

and the actuarial present value of future normal costs.  Also referred to as "past service liability". 

 

Actuarial Assumptions.  Estimates of future experience with respect to rates of mortality, disability, 

turnover, retirement, rate or rates of investment income and salary increases.  Decrement assumptions 

(rates of mortality, disability, turnover and retirement) are generally based on past experience, often 

modified for projected changes in conditions.  Economic assumptions (salary increases and investment 

income) consist of an underlying rate in an inflation-free environment plus a provision for a long-term 

average rate of inflation. 

 

Actuarial Cost Method.  A mathematical budgeting procedure for allocating the dollar amount of the 

"actuarial present value of future benefits" between future normal costs and actuarial accrued liability.  

Sometimes referred to as the "actuarial funding method". 

 

Actuarial Equivalent.  One series of payments is said to be actuarially equivalent to another series of 

payments if the two series have the same actuarial present value. 

 

Actuarial Gain (Loss).  The difference between actual unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities and 

anticipated unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities -- during the period between two valuation dates.  It is a 

measurement of the difference between actual and expected experience. 

 

Actuarial Present Value.  The amount of funds currently required to provide a payment or series of 

payments in the future.  It is determined by discounting future payments at predetermined rates of interest, 

and by probabilities of payments. 

 

Amortization.  Paying off an interest-discounted amount with periodic payments of interest and 

(generally) principal -- as opposed to paying off with a lump sum payment. 

 
  



City of Troy Employees Retirement System  C-16 
 

 
Aggregate Cost Method is a method where the Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits of the 

group included in the valuation, less the sum of the Funding Value of Assets and the Actuarial Present 

Value of Future Member Contributions is allocated over a future scheduled period.  This allocation is 

performed for the group as a whole, not as a sum of individual allocations.  The portion of this Actuarial 

Present Value allocated to a specific year is called the City’s Annual Normal Cost.  Under this method, 

actuarial gains (losses) reduce (increase) future Normal Costs. 

 

Credited Projected Benefit.  The portion of a member's projected benefit attributable to service 

before the valuation date - allocated based on the ratio of accrued service to projected total service and 

based on anticipated future compensation. 

 

Experience Gain (loss).  The difference between actual actuarial costs and assumed actuarial costs – 

during the period between two valuation dates. 

 

Funding Value of Assets.  Also referred to as actuarial value of assets, smoothed market value of 

assets, or valuation assets.   
 

Valuation assets recognize assumed investment return fully each year.  Differences between actual and 

assumed investment return are phased in over a closed 5 year period.  During periods when investment 

performance exceeds the assumed rate, valuation assets will tend to be less than market value.  During 

periods when investment performance is less than the assumed rate, valuation assets will tend to be greater 

than market value.   If assumed rates are exactly realized for 4 consecutive years, valuation assets will 

become equal to market value. 

 

Normal Cost.  The portion of the actuarial present value of future benefits that is assigned to the current 

year by the actuarial cost method.  Sometimes referred to as "current service cost". 

 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities.  The difference between actuarial accrued liabilities and 

valuation assets.  Sometimes referred to as "unfunded past service liability" or "unfunded supplemental 

present value". 

 

Most retirement systems have unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities.  They arise each time new benefits 

are added and each time an actuarial loss occurs. 

 

The existence of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities is not in itself bad, any more than a mortgage on a 

house is bad.  Unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities do not represent a debt that is payable today.  What is 

important is the ability to amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities and the trend in their amount 

(after due allowance for devaluation of the dollar). 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION D 
CERTAIN DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY 
STATEMENTS NO.  25  AND NO.  27  OF  THE 
GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
BOARD 
 
 

 
 
This information is presented in draft form for review by the City’s auditor. Please let us know 
if there are any items that the auditor changes so that we may maintain consistency with the 
City’s financial statements. 
 

 
 



 
 

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  D-1 
 

 

ACTUARIAL ACCRUED LIABILITY 
 
The actuarial accrued liability is a measure intended to help users assess (i) a pension fund's funded 

status on a going concern basis, and (ii) progress being made toward accumulating the assets needed 

to pay benefits as due.  The excess of the Actuarial Present Value of Projected Benefits of the group 

included in an Actuarial Valuation over the Actuarial Value of Assets is allocated on a level basis 

over the payroll of the group between the valuation date and assumed exit.  This allocation is 

performed for the group as a whole, not as a sum of individual allocations.  That portion of the 

Actuarial Present Value allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost.  The Actuarial 

Accrued Liability is equal to the Actuarial Value of Assets.  Under this method, the Actuarial Gains 

(Losses), as they occur, reduce (increase) future Normal Costs.   

 
The preceding methods comply with the financial reporting standards established by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

 
The Present Value of Projected Benefits was determined as part of an actuarial valuation of the plan 

as of December 31, 2010.  Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining the Present Value of 

Projected Benefits include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 6.5% 

per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 3.5% per year compounded annually, 

(c) additional projected salary increases of 0.0% to 2.5% per year attributable to seniority/merit, and 

(d) that there will be no cost of living adjustments after retirement. 

 

Actuarial Present Value of All Past and Future Benefits

Active members $  61,231,662

Retired members and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 88,664,507

Vested terminated members not yet receiving benefits 951,004

Total 150,847,173

Actuarial Value of Assets (market value was $134,391,230) 133,400,223

Present Value of Future Employee Contributions 1,920,579

Unfunded Present Value of Future Benefits $  15,526,371  

 

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Plan experienced a net change of ($2,398,978) in the 

actuarial present value of projected benefits.  There were no changes in actuarial assumptions or 

benefits during the year.  



 
 

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  D-2 
 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

($ AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) 
 

 

Actuarial Active
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Member
Valuation Value of Liability* Unfunded Funded Covered

Date Assets# (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll
December 31 (a) (b) (b)-(a) (a)/(b) (c)

1995 $  94,730 $  85,625 $  (9,105) 110.6 $19,040 (47.8) %

1996 106,334 92,845 (13,489) 114.5 20,536 (65.7)

1997 120,718 105,689 (15,029) 114.2 16,133 (93.2)

1998 109,474 90,869 (18,605) 120.5 16,201 (114.8)

1999 118,595 94,661 (23,934) 125.3 15,057 (159.0)

2000 123,956 99,740 (24,216) 124.3 15,441 (156.8)

2001 123,669 97,140 (26,529) 127.3 14,566 (182.1)

2002 117,372 95,527 (21,845) 122.9 13,553 (161.2)

2003 126,738 103,558 (23,180) 122.4 13,053 (177.6)

2004 126,802 109,364 (17,438) 115.9 12,572 (138.7)

2005 128,790 113,260 (15,530) 113.7 12,100 (128.4)

2006 132,168 119,299 (12,869) 110.8 11,472 (112.2)

2007 132,917 123,162 (9,755) 107.9 11,046 (88.3)

2008 128,249 126,138 (2,111) 101.7 10,953 (19.3)

2009 132,465 139,519 7,054 94.9 10,483 67.3

2010 133,400 139,232 5,832 95.8 8,959 65.1

((b-a)/c)

Unfunded AAL as
a Percentage of
Active Member
Covered Payroll

  #  Smoothed-market value. 
 *  Reflects entry age normal actuarial cost method to comply with GASB Statement No. 50. 
 
 

  



 
 

City of Troy Employees Retirement System  D-3 
 

 

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
 

Fiscal Actuarial Annual
Year Valuation Required

Ending Date Contribution*
June 30 December 31 (In thousands)

1995 1993 $3,146
1996 1994 3,267
1997 1995 3,367
1998 1996 2,759
1999 1997 2,655
2000 1998 1,087
2001 1999 1,174
2002 2000 1,461
2003 2001 1,605
2004 2002 1,482
2005 2003 117
2006 2004 213
2007 2005 273
2008 2006 273
2009 2007 428
2010 2008 1,361
2011 2009 2,505

 
 

 * Since it was stated to the actuary that the City’s practice is to contribute the percent of payroll employer 
contribution rate shown in the actuarial valuation results, the values shown are the actual contributions 
reported by the City in the fiscal year.  Also, for fiscal years ending in 2004 and earlier, annual required 
contributions include contributions for retiree health benefits. 

 
 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

 

Valuation Date 12/31/2010

Actuarial Cost Method Aggregate

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return* 6.5%
Projected Salary Increases* 3.5% - 7.5%
*Includes Inflation 3.5%  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 25, 2011 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Monica Irelan 
Assistant City Manager  
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
 
Dear Monica: 
 
Enclosed are twenty copies of the report of the Forty-Seventh Annual Actuarial 
Valuation of the City of Troy Employees Retirement System. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kenneth G. Alberts 
 
KGA:sc 
Enclosures 
 
cc: Rehman Robson 
 Randall Dziubek 
 Brad Armstrong 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Rehmann Robson 
5750 New King – Suite 100 
Troy, MI  48098 
 

 



BittnerA
Text Box
N-02c

































BittnerA
Text Box
N-03a





BittnerA
Text Box
N-03b

BittnerA
Rectangle

BittnerA
Rectangle

BittnerA
Rectangle

BittnerA
Rectangle





BittnerA
Text Box
N-03c



PRESS RELEASE 
 

Contact:  Cindy Stewart 
Community Affairs Director 

500 West Big Beaver 
Troy MI 48084 

ph 248.524.1147 
fax 248.524.3499  

 
For Release November 16, 2011 

 
 
 

UM-Dearborn’s iLabs eCities Research Recognizes Troy  
for its Positive Entrepreneurial Climate 

 
Troy, MI – Troy has been recognized for its work to foster entrepreneurial growth and 
economic development in a study by researchers at iLabs, University of Michigan-
Dearborn’s Center for Innovation Research.  Troy was honored as a five star community 
along with 21 other communities across the State, with 23 honored as four star 
communities and seven communities recognized as top performers.  
 
“We are extremely proud of the fact that this is the fifth straight year Troy has been 
recognized for attracting and retaining entrepreneurial companies to our community,” 
City Manager John Szerlag said.  “The adoption of our new zoning ordinance along with 
the Master Plan will further enhance our environment for investment in the City and 
provide land owners, developers and designers fast, fair and predictable development 
decisions.”   
 
Troy is a place where businesses as well as families thrive.  A community recognized 
for its excellent quality of life, the “Safest City in Michigan” has an A+ rated school 
system and City services.  As one of Detroit’s northern suburbs, Troy is home to 6,000 
flourishing businesses — including some of the most advanced technology companies 
in the world — that employ 125,000 people.   
 
Five-Star Communities 
Charter Township of 
Meridian  
City of Ann Arbor 
City of Auburn Hills  
City of Dearborn 
City of Farmington  
City of Grand Haven 
City of Kalamazoo 

City of Kentwood 
City of Litchfield 
City of Marshall 
City of Midland 
City of Rochester Hills  
City of Southfield 
City of Sterling Heights 
City of Sturgis 

City of Tecumseh 
City of Troy 
City of Wixom  
Scio Township 
Village of Jonesville  
Village of Quincy 

 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-05



Four-Star Communities
Alpine Township 
Cascade Charter 
Township 
Charter Township of 
Comstock  
Charter Township of 
Northville 
Charter Township of 
Waterford 
City of Alpena 

City of Coldwater 
City of East Lansing 
City of Frankenmuth 
City of Grandville 
City of Grand Rapids 
City of Holland 
City of Madison Heights 
City of Marquette 
City of Northville 
City of Novi  

City of Plymouth 
City of Portage 
City of Romulus 
City of Sault Ste. Marie 
Superior Charter 
Township 
Thomas Township 
Village of Oxford 

 
The eCities research surveyed more than 100 communities in the State of Michigan 
who are home to 36% of Michigan residents and 44% of its college graduates. These 
communities also had more than $1 billion in commercial construction last year and 
more than half of them share services with other communities.  
 
“We are pleased to have participation from so many communities throughout the state 
in eCities 2011,” said Davis. “The focus of this project is assisting local communities by 
identifying best practices and methods that they can implement which will aid with job 
growth strategies, economic diversification, and development of entrepreneurs.”  
 
The communities were honored at a ceremony at UM-Dearborn on Wednesday, 
November. 16, with Martin Dober, senior vice president of entrepreneurship & 
innovation, Michigan Economic Development Corporation, providing the keynote 
address at the event. 
 
The annual eCities research project, which began in 2007, uses data supplied by the 
participants as well as other public records to assemble a six-factor, 32-item index of 
entrepreneurial activity, looking at such factors as clustering, incentives, growth, 
policies, community and education. The study focuses on entrepreneurship because of 
its importance to expansion and diversification of Michigan’s regional economies and 
the impact small businesses have on job creation. To date, 138 communities across 
Michigan have participated in the study.  
 

 
# # # 

 
 
 
 

 





BittnerA
Text Box
N-06





BittnerA
Text Box
O-01
















































	20111121 Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA: November 21, 2011
	COVER LETTER:
	VISION STATEMENT & GOALS:
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page:
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations
	a) Troy School District Students Present “Say No to Drugs” Pledge Forms to Troy City Council


	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  Adoption of City Council Rules of Procedure Postponed from the November 14, 2011 Regular City Council Meeting

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: City Council Appointments – Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: City Council Nominations – Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG)

	Suggested Resolution
	I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Bid Waiver – Professional Services – Police Department Promotional Testing Services
	I-5 2012 City Council Meeting Schedule
	I-6 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and Established: Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. – 2350 Meijer
	I-7 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and Established: EcoMotors, International – 1055 W. Square Lake
	I-8 Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and Established: The ProMetal RCT, LLC – 2341 Alger
	I-9 Reconsideration and Substitution of Resolution Approving Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Sulzer Metco, Inc. – 1972 Meijer

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal Services – Municipal Parking Lots and Local Roads
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal Services – Home Chore Program and Public Sidewalks

	J-5 Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 Funds
	J-6 May, as Personal Representative of Jesus Gillard v Bloomfield Township,        Troy, et. al

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  No Council Referrals Submitted

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes-Final-October 10, 2011
	b) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-October 18, 2011
	c) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-October 18, 2011
	d) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes-Draft-November 14, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) City of Troy Retiree Health Care Plan Actuarial Valuation of Other Postemployment Benefits - December 31, 2010
	b) City of Troy Employees Retirement System Forty-Seventh Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2010
	c) Quarterly Financial Report – September 30, 2011

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation from Vandan Kumar Manni to Lieutenant Riesterer – Fire Department
	b) Letter of Appreciation from Matt Creech to Steven Vandette – City Engineer
	c) Letter of Appreciation from JoAnne Carlson – American Business Women’s Association to Cathy Russ – Library Director

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
	N-5  University of Michigan-Dearborn’s iLabs eCities Research Recognizes Troy for Its Positive Entrepreneurial Climate
	N-6  Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company Case No. U-16892

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  Update and Status of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  No Closed Session Requested

	Q. ADJOURNMENT


	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 0
	1: 3548100
	2: 3548100

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Assessor, City of Troy



